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(The follow ng proceedings herein were had
and made of record, comencing at 8:00 a.m,
Wednesday, June 25, 2008, as follows:)

JUDGE WAHL: The record will show that it
is 8 o'clock a.m, June 25, 2008. This is the third
day of the hearing of the Northern States Power
Conmpany electric rate increase application, North
Dakota Public Service Comm ssion Case No. PU-07-776.

| don't see anyone, but is there anyone
present, other than those who will testify on behalf
of Northern States Power or the Comm ssion's
advocacy staff, who have come to the hearing to
offer any information or coment concerning Northern
States Power's electric rate increase application?

Al'l right. M. Bahr, you may proceed when
you're ready.

MR. BAHR: Your Honor, one housekeeping
thing. Yesterday, at the conclusion, we discussed
the diagram witten on the board and had copies
printed out. | believe counsel agrees, but we would
like to submt that as an exhibit so that it can be
referenced in the record.

JUDGE WAHL: All right. By my count
that's Exhibit 34. M . Bradley?

MR. BRADLEY: No obj ecti on.
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JUDGE WAHL: Exhi bit 34 is received.
MR. BAHR: l'"d like to call Charlie King.
JUDGE WAHL: M. King, as you have heard
ad nauseam t hese past days, your testinony is
required to be under oath, and |I'mrequired by |aw

to advise you regarding perjury before adm nistering

t he oath.

Perjury is a false statenment of materi al
fact which you do not believe to be true. | n ot her
wor ds, generally speaking, a lie. I n North Dakota

perjury is a Class C felony, punishable by a fine up
to $5,000, inprisonment for a period of up to five
years, or both.

W Il you raise your right hand, please?

Bei ng advi sed regardi ng perjury, M. King,
do you swear that the testimny which you' re about
to give in this matter shall be the truth, the whole
truth and nothing but the truth?

THE W TNESS: | do.

JUDGE WAHL: M. Bahr.

CHARLES W. KI NG,

havi ng been first duly sworn, was exam ned and

testified as foll ows:
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DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. BAHR:

Q M. King, would you please state your full
name for the record?

A My name is Charles W King.

Q And woul d you expl ain your place of
enpl oynment and your role in these proceedi ngs?

A "' m presi dent of the econom c consulting
firm of Snavely King Majoros & Bedell. | was
retained in this case to address policy matters
relating to this case and also to ook into a rate

design cost allocation.

Q And have you prepared written testimny?
A Yes, | have.
Q And that written testinmony identifies and

expl ai ns your experience, training and
qualifications to provide your opinions?

A That's in two attachments, yes.

Q Now, you've -- since submtting your
written testinmony, you' ve had the opportunity of
review ng rebuttal testinmny submtted by NSP?

A Yes, | have.

Q And were you present Monday and Tuesday of
t hese hearings and had the opportunity to listen to

the testimony presented by NSP?
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A Yes, | did.
Q Based upon that, will there be any
additions, deletions or changes to your written

testinony?

A Yes. One change on page 6 --
Q M. King, let me submt this first and
then we'll have you explain the change.

A Oh, all right.

MR. BAHR: | would like to introduce
Exhi bit 23.

JUDGE WAHL: M . Bradley?

MR. BRADLEY: No obj ections.

JUDGE WAHL: Exhi bit 23 is received.

Q (MR. BAHR CONTI NUI NG) Okay. M. King,
could you pl ease explain your change?

A Yes. The one change is at the bottom of
page 6, line 20. There's a sentence there that
says, "The exhibit shows that the M nnesota
standards," and then strike the rest of the sentence
and substitute the words -- 1'll read the whole
sentence. "The exhibit shows that the M nnesota
standards apply to the King plant, but not the
federal standards."

Q And that is the only change or correction

to your written testimny?
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A Right. That is the case, yes.

Q Coul d you please provide a general summary
of your written testinony in this matter?

A Yes. This case involves the problemthat
the M nnesota dog has been wagging the North Dakota
tail. There are three wags that my testimony
addresses. The first is em ssion standards. The
second is renewable requirements, and the third is
depreci ati on.

Wth respect to em ssion standards, we
have something called MERP, and that stands -- and
it's inmportant to understand what it stands for --

M nnesota Em ssions Reduction Program And t here

are two aspects to this that | have identified. The
first is the King plant. | have -- based on
conversations with the company, |'ve stated that the

King plant would not have been refurbished as soon

as it did. Now, |'m very sensitive to M. Wahl's
five years in the slammer, so | will tell you
exactly what | remenber. And | took notes that

record this. Ms. Engel king stated that were it not
for the MERP, we woul d have rehabilitated the King
pl ant, maybe not as soon as we did, but we would
have rehabilitated the King plant, anyway. Those

were her words.
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Now, the conpany now denies that. And |
think the objective test would be to | ook at the
i ntegrated resource plan that preceded the enact ment
of MERP and to see when the King plant was schedul ed
for rehabilitation. If it was schedul ed for
rehabilitation when it, in fact, was rehabilitated,
| would withdraw my recommendati on. On the other
hand, if it turns out that, in fact, it would have
been del ayed for several years, then it would not
have happened as soon as it did and we would not be
confronted with a bill for $470 mlIlion for the
rehabilitation.

The other area where the M nnesota
environment or the MERP program inmpacts is a little
more substantive basis for my adjustnment. In 2003
the company submtted two plans for inmplementing
MERP, and plan A, which was adopted, involved
tearing down the existing coal plant at High Bridge
and replacing it with a combustion turbine, dual-
fired combustion turbine, which is what has been
done.

Plan B, which also met all the
requi rements of M nnesota, statutory requirenments
for em ssions reduction, was to rehabilitate the

Hi gh Bridge plant as a coal plant. And the cost of
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t hat was about half what it is -- what it has been
to tear the plant down, build a new one as a
gas-fired combustion turbine.

Now, the issue is whether that was
required by M nnesota em ssions requirenments or
whet her there was an additional need, which is to
add capacity, which, in fact, this new plant has
done. And the test of that is to exam ne the | oad
growth and the | oad requirements and the capacity
requi rements that presumably justify the addition of
this capacity. | f those requirements did not oblige
t he conpany to suppl ement capacity when it did, then
| believe the differential between what the company
spent and what the conpany would have spent under
the alternative plan should be disallowed. And
that's the first of the three wags of the tail.

Second wag is renewables. And here we
have a wind mandate by M nnesota that is now being
passed to -- well, by extension to North Dakot a.
And the history of that has devel oped during this
hearing. What happened is that early in the |late
1990's or 2000, I don't know the date, M nnesota
passed a requirement that NSP construct a certain
amount of wi nd generation in M nnesota. Wel |, where

to construct wi nd generation in M nnesota? The only
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pl ace with decent wind in M nnesota is a ridge in
the far southwest corner of the state. The trouble
was, there was no capacity, no transm ssion capacity
to connect that area with the rest of the state. So
t he company spent $300 mllion to build a
transm ssion line to hook up this M nnesota-mndat ed
wind facility.

Well, once the wind facility was hooked
up, transm ssion line was built, then M nnesota
deci ded they should have nmore wi nd and they mandated
a very high wind percentage of all generation in
M nnesota. And that will lead to a requirement for
4,000 megawatts of wi nd by 2020. \Where are we going
to put that additional wi nd capacity? Well, the
only place it feasibly can be put is at the end of
that transm ssion line. So instead of a small
amount of wind going in at the end of that
transm ssion line, that's where all of the
additi onal wi nd capacity has been. There has been a
smal |l amount purchased in North Dakota, but nothing
built in North Dakot a.

Now, the adjustment |'m proposing is to
recogni ze that that may well have been and probably
was a suboptimal solution to the requirement or the

need to get additional wind. A nore optimal
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solution would have been to devel op wi nd resources
in North Dakota, which is a far better resource base
for that kind of power. But the conpany has not
done that and the reason it hasn't done that is the
M nnesotans required initially that the wi nd power
be put in M nnesot a.

Now, the third area in which -- and |I've
recommended in recognition that there is probably a
subopti mal solution, that 25 percent of the cost of
hooki ng that wi nd power up in M nnesota should be
di sal l owed for purposes of North Dakota ratepayers.

The third area where the M nnesota tai
has wagged the North Dakota dog is in depreciation.
It's been the practice of this Comm ssion to accept
M nnesota PUC rulings on depreciation for Northern
States. And that has led to a failure by this
Comm ssion to | ook carefully at the depreciation
program of NSP. There are really two broad
probl ems. One is the treatment of |ives of
production plants and the other is the treatment of
net sal vage or renoval costs.

The lives of production plants are based
on an annual review every year of what is supposed
to be the remaining life of the production plants.

Well, currently the conpany believes that they're




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

617
going to close the Sherco plant in 2022, | believe
it is. And that's only, what, 14 years from now.
Now, the Sherco plant is one of the company's three
bi g base | oad plants. The proposition that they're
going to close that plant in 14 years is patently
ridiculous and failing to recognize that it's
patently ridiculous and that the plant wil
unquestionably live | onger than 14 nore years, | eads
to an excessive depreciation rate for that plant and
it's a very expensive plant.

The same is true of the Prairie Island
pl ant, which is due for relicensing and will, |
woul d say, certainly be relicensed. Maybe some
added costs associated, but it will certainly be
relicensed and that relicensing should be recognized
right now because, otherwi se, you're grossly over-
depreciating $1.2 billion in plant.

That also is true of the conbustion
turbines, all of which -- not all of which, but the
newest of which are being depreciated at an
accelerating rate and incurring initially extremely
hi gh depreciation charges. Now, if the conpany used
the remaining-life procedure, there m ght be some
payback for this initial overdepreciation, but

that's not -- my understanding, that's not what the
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conpany does. Under remaining-life procedure, if
you overdepreciate plant, that goes into the reserve
and when you compute a new depreciation rate with a
| onger life, you subtract the reserve fromthe plant
bal ance and you depreciate only that undepreciated
conponent; that is, the net plant that is left, and
you depreciate that over the remaining life, which
now woul d be | onger.

| don't believe that's what the conmpany
does. It's my understanding that they use the life
span arrangenment. Where if -- and let's take the
case of the Prairie Island plant. |f they have been
overdepreciating it based on a 40-year |ife and now
it becomes a 60-year life, there's no recognition of
the fact that they have been overdepreciating, that
t hey have accrued excessive reserves and,
consequently, the new depreciation rate should be
di scounted so as to recogni ze that passed-over
depreci ati on.

Now, the issue of net sal vage pl ant
removal costs has been discussed at | ength already.
Briefly, the conpany is asking you to let them fold
into depreciation costs that will not be expensed
for -- or expended for 20, 30 years. And not at the

current dollar value, but at the future doll ar
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val ue, an inflated number that reflects distant
future costs. As M. Majoros pointed out yesterday,
t hey have built in future inflation and are charging
that to customers right now. And that systemis
patently wrong. The system | recomend, which is
not the one -- the system | recomend ultimtely,
not the one we're implementing in this case, is to
devel op an estimate of the current cost of removing
these facilities and use that as the basis for
recovering renmoval costs. Not an inflated future
cost, but the current cost, because as M. Majoros
poi nted out, you only charge people in the current
year for current costs.

My final recommendation is for a North
Dakot a- based i ntegrated resource plan. The conpany
has bl own this recommendation all out of context and
totally m sinterpreted. | do not recommend a
stand- al one generating system for North Dakot a.

What we're proposing is to get to the core of
everything we have been tal king about, and that is
to develop an IRP that reflects the statutory

requi rements i nposed by the State of North Dakot a,
not the State of M nnesota and to see what those
costs would be if only the M nnesota | aws apply. I n

ot her words, if, because of M nnesota, they had to




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

620
advance the King plant, because of North Dakota they
woul dn't have had to advance the King plant and we
want to know what the effect of that difference is.
And it applies to all elements in the whole revenue
requirenment. To the extent M nnesota has infl ated
costs and now the conmpany seeks to pass those costs
to North Dakota, we want those costs disallowed, and
that's really been the intention of nmy testinony and
the policy that I recomend.

| want to say a little something about the
testinmony | did not give and that addresses
Comm ssioner Wefald's issue and that's rate design
cost allocation. W did go through at some |ength
the rate design cost allocation plan with the
company and M. Huso and M., | think it is
Grivna -- who was the other --

MS. HERTZLER: Zins.

THE W TNESS: MWhat's that?

MS. HERTZLER: Zins.

THE W TNESS: Zins, right. M. Zins will
attest that we asked quite a few fairly detailed
data requests and obtai ned answers and we revi ewed
t hose answers. The reason | didn't testify on rate
design is, surprisingly, | agree with al nost

everything the conpany has recommended. The conpany
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is doing a comendable job of trying to reflect cost
incurrence in rates. I n other words, to the extent
that costs vary with demand, they are charging those
as demand charges. To the extent that costs vary
with time of day, they're trying to reflect those in
the time of day. Real -time pricing is the wave of
the future for very large industrial |oads where
t hey can control the level of consunption, and the
company has come up with, | think, some very
i nnovative ideas in that regard.

The one area which | have not seen
el sewhere is the idea of a variable by class fuel
adj ust nment . Again, that reflects cost
differentials. The mx of fuels used by industri al
customers is going to be different than the m x of
fuels used by small commercial and residenti al
customers. And it's appropriate to make that -- to
reflect that in the fuel-adjustnment charge.

A couple things -- one thing | m ght have
commented on has to do with the cost-allocation
procedure. The conmpany uses a margi nal cost
principle in allocating costs anmong cl asses. I n
ot her words, they only allocate at the margin; that
is, at the dispatch level. The effect of this is

you have no allocation of any of your base | oad
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costs, except a very small allocation based on
ni ghtti me consumption when the base | oad plants are
at the margin. And that's somewhat distorted
because it fails to reflect the very | ow cost of
base | oad power they use by -- heavily high-Ioad
factor customers. | didn't want to get into that
because in the '80s, 1980's when | was very deeply
into it, there was a raging debate about the
mar gi nal allocation of costs versus the embedded
al l ocation of costs and it went on for quite some
years. And there are arguments on both sides. I
can't say that | would want to bore you with the
argunents that otherwi se | would have to make.

The one recomendati on on rate design that
| would |ike to make and possibly | should have
included this in ny testinony, and that has to do
with the customer charges for -- the flat customer
charges for electric service. Nort h Dakota is at
the forefront of states in this country in
recogni zing that distribution costs for gas and
electricity are fixed. They are customer costs.
They relate to reaching the customer and they should
be reflected in a customer charge. The predom nant
condition throughout the industry is that these

charges are way under their cost, and |I think it
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appropriate to gradually increase that customer
charge until it covers the fixed cost of reaching
the customer and serving the customer.

The advantage of that from the custonmer
st andpoi nt, not just the conpany, is that it evens
out the bills throughout the year. To charge
everything or charge excessive amounts on a
volunmetric basis, means that during the summer when
the air conditioner runs, the custonmer's bill goes
sky hi gh. It's going sky high anyway because of the
extraordinarily high cost of fuel. To |l ay on that
t he additional cost of allocating fixed distribution
costs to the volunetric rate sinply aggravates the
volatility of the month-to-nonth bills to the
cust omer .

So | recommend that regardl ess of whatever
the revenue requirement finding of this Conm ssion
m ght be, that it approve the increase that the
conpany increases -- that the conpany is
recommending in its customer charges, and if those
cover the full or more than the full amount of the
revenue requirement increase, then the differential
shoul d be taken out of the volunetric charges.

And that conmpletes my summary.

Q (MR. BAHR CONTI NUI NG) Thank you.
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M. King, with regard to the rates and the tariffs,
| believe it was Comm ssioner Wefald who had asked
some questions of the company regardi ng whet her
certain practices were complied with in North Dakota
and M nnesota code.

Woul d t hat have been an issue that you had
| ooked at at all?

A No. | think -- first of all, we didn't
| ook at it. Even if we did look at it, | would not
feel particularly conpetent to comment on it because
' m not a | awyer.

Q | just wanted to make sure that your
recommendations were limted to the general
practice.

A Yes.

Q |'m going to ask you a few questions
regardi ng your responses to some of the testimony
subm tted by NSP. I f you feel you' ve already
covered those, just |let nme know so you don't have to
repeat yourself.

A All right.

Q Now, M. Larson asserts that your
di sal | owances do not reflect a finding that the
di sal |l owed costs are inmprudent. Do you have a

response to that?
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A | never said they weren't prudent. They
were incurred because M nnesota required themto be
i ncurred. It doesn't have anything to do with
prudence or non-prudence. It has to do with the
fact that M nnesota has decided to pass a whol e
bunch of laws or regul ations that inmpose costs on
t he conpany and now the company is seeking to pass
those to North Dakota, and | believe they're
i nappropriate as North Dakota all owed costs.

Q There was an assertion by M. Larson that
your disall owances will make NSP unable to invest in
North Dakota. Any response to that?

A Well, first of all, I'"mnot recommendi ng
t hat any North Dakota costs be disall owed. [''m
sinply saying that some of these costs the company
is passing to North Dakota aren't North Dakot a
costs. The conmpany, of course, can continue
investing in North Dakota and for every dollar it
invests in North Dakota for the benefit of North
Dakot a ratepayers based on North Dakota
requi rements, they will be fully conmpensated.

Q Any response to M. Larson's assertion
t hat your disall owances would impair financi al
viability of the conpany's North Dakota operations?

A Of course not. Again, it's the definition
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of whether the North Dakota operations that we're
argui ng about, not whether the costs should be
covered once they are -- once those North Dakot a
requi rements are identified.

Q | believe it was M. Larson and
Ms. Engel ki ng who di scussed the benefits of an
integrated system Do you agree with them or have
any response?

A Absol utely. Everything they have said |
agree with 100 percent.

Q Do you propose -- you kind of addressed
this, but do you propose a planning nmodel that is
based on a stand-alone North Dakota systenf

A Absol utely not.

Q What i s your response to M. Larson's

claims that your disallowances have no factual

support?
A Well, 1I've identified the facts on which
base my disall owances. | guess the one that's npost

debat able has to do with the King disall owance,

whet her or not the King plant's rehabilitation was

advanced owing to the M nnesota Em ssions Reduction
Program And as | said earlier in my summary, the

test of that would be to | ook at the I RP that

preceded the enactment of MERP and to see when the
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King plant was due for rehabilitation prior to the
MERP program

Oh, and as regards High Bridge, that's got
a factual basis. It's that plan that was subm tted
by the conpany itself in 2003. And the facts of the
wi nd generation are laid out fully in this hearing.
We know exactly how conme all the wind is in
M nnesota and none is in North Dakota. And with
regard to the depreciation disallowances, | think
they are fully outlined in nmy testinony. | woul d be
happy to review them with anyone who would like to
ask about them

Q Okay. There was an assertion by
M. Larson that your disallowances are reactive
rat her than proactive?

A Well, they're reactive for the obvious
reason. The company is only just now comng to this
Comm ssion to ask to have all these costs included.
Had the conmpany come to this Comm ssion and said

we're going to do all these things because the

M nnesota people require us to do it, if we do them
will you be willing to pay for them | think we
probably woul d not be having this discussion. It's

quite possible this Comm ssion could have deci ded,

no, we're not going to pay for those things because
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the M nnesota Comm ssion requires them or the
M nnesota Legislature requires them
But, in any case, that's why it's
reactive. It's all a done deal and now the bill is
being put to the North Dakota ratepayers.

Q There was an assertion that the company
had no choice to make these investnents. Do you
have a response to that?

A Well, there was no choice because the
M nnesota Legislature put the gun to the conpany's
head. A particular example is the Prairie Island
fuel casks, where the price to pay to keep that
pl ant open was to install all this wi nd generation
in M nnesot a. Well, it wasn't -- the contingency
was not that it had to be in M nnesota, but by that
time it was going to be in Mnnesota because that's
where the transm ssi on hookups were.

Q Do you disagree that your disall owances
are not properly cal cul ated?

A Yes. | accept all of Ms. Heuer's
recal cul ati ons.

Q Woul d your disall owances decrease NSP's
Nort h Dakota earnings to unacceptable |evels?

A No. They get full earnings and | believe

the rate of return has already been sti pul at ed.
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They get full rate of return and full depreciation
on North Dakota allocable costs.

Q | f your disallowances are adopted, would
this mean that the investnments would be permanently
di sal l owed in all future North Dakota rate cases?

A Absolutely not. The two big disall owances
are the King plant and the High Bridge plant. As
regards the King plant, if the pre-MERP I RP shows
t hat that plant would have gone in in 2009 instead
of 2006 when -- | think it's 2006 or 2007 when it
finally did go in, then it should go in for North
Dakot a purposes in 20009.

And the same is true of the High Bridge
pl ant . If the High Bridge capacity, the extra 200-
odd megawatts is required in, say, 2009 or 2010,
that's when that renovati on should be accepted for
Nort h Dakota purposes.

Q Okay. In the summary of your testinony
and, in fact, in the change in your testinmny on
page 6, that relates to the environmental standards
or requirements?

A. That's correct.

Q You know, there's been some discussion as
to whether the M nnesota standards or the federal

standards are higher?
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A Well, the federal standards are nmore
restrictive. The term high or |lower is --

Q I's incorrect?

A -- what confuses me. | have to admt
was confused by it, but the inmportant point is
federal standards didn't apply to the King plant and
the M nnesota standards do.

Q Wth regard to depreciation, can you Kkind
of explain the controversy between you and the
company regarding removal costs?

A Well, the conpany wants to treat removal
costs, as | said in my summary, based on future
costs. Let nme give you a fairly realistic exanmple
of just what the conmpany is asking. Suppose you had
a house in the mountains and the government came
al ong and said, well, we're going to declare this a
national wildlife reserve and we want your house,
but we're going to give you life tenancy and at the
end of that, when you die, your estate will not own
t he house and we're going to tear it down.

And this is not a far-fetched exanpl e. I
have a good friend who has a house on Cape Cod with
exactly this deal. But suppose the governnment then
said, well, we're going to pay you the fair market

price, but we want to deduct fromthat the cost of
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tearing the house down. So they get an appraiser
in. The appraiser says the house is worth $100, 000,
but it's going to take $10,000 to tear it down so
we're going to pay you $90,000. And that's probably
a reasonabl e solution and you m ght take that and
wal k away.

But if it was NSP, they would come in and
say, well, we'll buy your house for $100, 000, that's
the current fair market value, but you have to pay
us $2.5 mllion and the reason you have to pay us
$2.5 mllion is the $10,000 is just current day's
cost, but we're not going to tear it down now, we're
going to tear it down 30 years from now when you're
probably going to die, and we have taken this cost
and we have conpounded it three percent a year for
30 years and $10,000 in 30 years is $2.5 mllion and
that is your bill. And that's exactly what NSP is
proposing to collect from North Dakota ratepayers.

And that, | think, sums up the
controversy. We're trying to get that $10,000 as

the current charge for all removal costs, express

and current costs. Now, the surrogate |'ve used in
this case -- we would have made this cal cul ati on,
incidentally, if I hadn't been stonewall ed on the

subject of the underlying data for the depreciation
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case. But that being the case, | had to use the
alternative, which is to take the nmost recent five
years' average of removal costs and use that as a
basis for nmy rempoval cost all owances.

Q Now, M. Watson spent a |ot of his
testi mony denounci ng what he perceived as your
met hod of accruing renoval costs. Did he accurately
portray your method?

A well, first of all, my method is not the
one I'"'mrecomending in this case. The one I'm
recommending in this case, as | just said, is a

surrogate for the current value of removal costs

that | would have cal cul ated were I to have the

dat a. Experience in other utilities is that the two
come out about the sane. | f you discount future
removal costs back to the present, you'll find that

it pretty much equals the present average removal
costs. So the surrogate is not inappropriate.

Q Are you proposing to move away from
accrual accounting for renoval costs as asserted by
M. Watson?

A Of course not. We're going to accrue
removal costs, but only at their present -- their
current val ue.

Q There are also claims by M. Watson that
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your approach creates generational inequities?

A That is, frankly, a ludicrous claim As
my little example showed, under NSP's system they
want to charge present-day ratepayers $2.5 mllion
to tear the house down. That is one hell acious
shift of burden forward from 30 years to the present
generation of ratepayers. It's altogether
i nequi tabl e because it front-Iloads, horribly front-
| oads the accrual of removal costs.

Q Now, M. Robinson testified that the
whol e-1ife method of depreciation is one of two
accepted procedures for calculating depreciation.

Do you agree with that?

A It's an accepted procedure provided there
is an alternative calculation, which is one that
anortizes any disparities or imbalances, as they
call them in the depreciation reserve. | n ot her
words, if you're going to use whole life, you have
to exam ne whether the depreciation reserve is
overstated or understated relative to what it should
be if all your Iife and curve-shape assunptions are
accurate. So his statement is true, but it is
incomplete. A whole |life without some sort of
mechani sm for adjusting for reserve imbal ances is

unaccept abl e.
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Q What are the advantages of remaining-life
depreci ation?
A Well, the principal advantage is that
automatically it recovers or refunds excesses or

shortfalls in the depreciation reserve and that's

t he principal advantage. It's used by the vast
majority of utilities.
Q Are remaining-life depreciation rates

hi gher or | ower than whole-life depreciation rates?

A Nei t her. They could be higher. They
could be | ower. In the case of NSP for production
pl ant, they will be very nmuch | ower because they
will reflect the fact that every year, practically,

t he conpany keeps adjusting forward its remaining
lives and what they' ve been doing in the past is
overdepreciating so the reserve is overstated, and

unl ess there's some sort of adjustment mechanism for

that, that overstatenment will keep building and it
wi Il never be refunded to ratepayers.

Q Now, M. Robinson made a point about you
using the industry average steam plant |life instead

of the specifics of the Sherco plant and of the
combustion turbine units. How do you respond to
t hat ?

A Well, there are no specifics that
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M. Robinson identified that justify the assunption
t he Sherco plant is only going to |ast another
14 years, to use that specific exanple, and that's
true of the combustion turbines as well. Absent
specifics, you have to use some standard, and the
standard we have used is the industry average. This
is based on a hundred years of experience. It's not
a shal l ow anal ysi s.

Q | think you addressed this some in your
earlier testinony, but with regard to concerns
expressed that you aren't considering the -- or that
there will need to be substantial upgrades to both
t he Sherco plant and the conbustion turbines if they

are to survive --

A wWell, of course, there will --
Q -- their expected lives?
A Of course there will be and those upgrades

should be reflected in depreciation when they are
made. This is the only conpany | have ever heard of
t hat contends that we should now be overdepreciating
t he existing plant because in the future we're going
to be having to invest nore noney in it.

The good example is the Prairie |Island
pl ant. The embedded investment in Prairie Island is

$1.2 billion. The conmpany says, well, we're going
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to have to spend $180 mllion to extend its life for
20 years, and for that reason we're going to over-
depreciate $1.2 billion right now because of five
years from now we're going to have to spend $180
mllion. That's just not a justifiable reason for
overchargi ng depreciation at the present time,
particularly when there's no mechani sm for refunding
t hose overcharges to ratepayers once you make the
extension in the life.

Q Now, is it premature to extend the |ife of
the Prairie Island nuclear plant as asserted by
M . Robi nson?

A Absol utely not. It's virtually known and
certain change. It's going to happen. And to
continue depreciating that plant as though it's
going to be closed at the end of 40 years is flatly
Wr ong. It should reflect the virtual certainty it's
going to |last 60 years instead.

Q And | believe, as you explained, if
there's future upgrades, there would be depreciation
of those and the rates would reflect those costs?

A Absolutely. And they will be recovered
over the remaining life of that plant.

Q How do you respond to M. Robinson's

comments concerning your five-year |life extension of
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t he overhead conductors account?

A Well, there's two problens there. First,
what initiated it was the fact that the conpany is
upgrading its vegetation control. If they're
upgradi ng vegetation control, what is the effect of
t hat upgrading? Well, the effect of that upgrading
is trees won't fall on the lines so nuch. And if
that's the case, the lines are going to |l ast |onger
and the poles are going to |last |onger.

That's one objection, but the nore
fundanmental objection is that the depreciation rate
for overhead conductors does not reflect North
Dakot a experi ence. Now, North Dakota is
di stingui shed from M nnesota in that there are not
as many trees in North Dakot a. There also isn't as
much rain and consequently not as many
t hunderstorms. There is |l ess precipitation so
there's probably less ice in the wintertime in North
Dakota than in M nnesota. W don't know that, but
it's reasonable to surm se and, therefore, you
shoul d not be using the M nnesota nunber for North
Dakota. You should be studying the North Dakota
experience for that account at | east. Probably
ought to be studying North Dakota experience for all

the distribution accounts.
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Q And | think you did address this some, but
M . Robi nson objects to the North Dakota specific
depreci ation study. How do you respond to that?

A Well, they object to nmore than that. They
object to the idea there be North Dakota specific
depreciation rates on the grounds that they don't
want to be charging different rates for different
states. Well, lots of other comm ssions do that. I
live in the Washi ngton, D.C. area and all of the
utilities in Washington, D.C. that serve Washi ngton
D.C. serve nultiple jurisdictions. The electric
company serves Maryland and the District of
Col unmbi a, has separate depreciation rates for those
two jurisdictions even for comon plant that is used
by bot h.

The gas company serves Maryl and, Virginia
and the District of Columbia. They have three sets
of depreciation rates for all of their plant for all
three jurisdictions. The same is true of the
Del marva Power and Light Conpany which serves
Maryl and, Del aware and Virginia, and they have
separate depreciation rates for each of their
jurisdictions.

Even nore extreme are the phone conpanies

when they used to have regul ated depreciation rates,
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not only do they have different rates for every
state, they had different rates for the same pl ant
in the same state that was allocated to interstate
purposes as intrastate purposes. Di fferent
depreci ation rates. It's doabl e. It's not all that
hard, particularly for distribution plant where they
have situs plant and you know exactly what's in
North Dakota and exactly what's in M nnesota.

MR. BAHR: | have no additional questions
of M. King.

JUDGE WAHL: M. Bradley.

MR. BRADLEY: Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. BRADLEY:

Q M. King, | want to begin with your
testinony at page 9 of your Exhibit 23 where you
state that you're not opposed to the conmpany
recovering their costs, just recovering themin
Nort h Dakota. And | believe you answered to your
counsel that you're not arguing the conpany was
i mprudent ?

A No. It had to incur those costs because
the M nnesota Legislature required them

Q So you're not saying the conmpany was

i mprudent at the time it selected for rehabilitation
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King, for example?

A Well, it may have been imprudent fromthe
standpoint of a requirement for rehabilitating
pl ant, but it wasn't imprudent because it was
required to do so by the MERP program | n ot her
words, the issue is when the King plant was
rehabilitated and why it was rehabilitated when it
was. If it had to be rehabilitated anyway, as
Ms. Engel ki ng asserts, fine, but let's get proof of
t hat, and proof, as | indicated, is the old |IRP.

Q Did the M nnesota statute authorizing an
em ssions reduction program commonly referred to,
by the way, not as M nnesota Metro, but Metro ERP
did that statute require the conpany to undertake
any of the three MERP prograns?

A Well, the statute didn't require it, but
t he conpany had to develop a program pursuant to the
statute and submt it to the -- what's the name of
the outfit -- the M nnesota Pollution Abatement
Aut hority, Pollution Control Authority. But ,
anyway, that was the authority that they had to
submt the plan to and the authority then had to
approve the plan and the plan they approved is the
one that has since been inmpl emented.

Q It is your inpression that the conpany was
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obligated to establish a plan?

A | believe it was, yes.

Q That's your understandi ng, you' ve read the
statute?

A Well, let's put it this way: \Whether it's

in the statute or not, that's how it worked out.

For all intents and purposes, it may as well have
been in the statute because that's how the conmpany
responded to the program They wanted to get this
money in a rider. How to get it in the rider, the
way you got it in the rider is to turn up a program
that this pollution control authority will approve.

Q Was there anything in that statute that
established a tinmeline under which the conpany had
to apply?

A Oh, | don't know whether it did or not.
The conpany wanted to get this rider in so it
established a tinmeline.

Q Is there anything in that statute that
required the company accelerate the rehabilitation
of King in order to qualify under that statute?

A Well, again, in order to get the rider,
the conmpany had to submt the plan. I n order to get
t he plan approved, the company had to come up with a

timeline that would respond to the M nnesota
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requi rement for em ssions limtation.
Q Has the statute been repeal ed?
A No, not to my knowl edge.

Q So if the conpany thought it was
appropriate to delay rehabilitation of King, it
could have waited until this year to apply for it?

A. | don't think so. | don't know that, but

| don't think so.

Q What's your authority for not thinking so?
A Well, the conpany that got the statute
t hrough -- why would they get the statute through if

they didn't want to inmplement the thing?

Q Exactly our point. What came first -- the
company's plan or the statute?

A Well, they all came at once. The conpany
sold the statute and the statute was then passed and
t he conpany quickly responded to it. | mean, this
is all a part of -- you can't separate these things,
say the statute stands alone fromthe plan and the
pl an stands alone from the advancement of King.
These are all a package that happened in M nnesota
for the benefit of M nnesota.

Q For the benefit of the conpany's
rat epayers?

A. Oh, no, for the benefit of the M nnesota
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environment. That's what nmotivated this whole
thing. That's what it's called, the pollution
abat ement pl an.

Q Under the process used for MERP, Metro ERP
projects, was the conmpany required to prove the
reasonabl eness of its proposal ?

A Of course. But the reasonabl eness
initially related only to the pollution abatement
because the plan wasn't submtted to the --
initially wasn't submtted to the PUC. It was
submtted to the pollution control authority.

Q It's your belief that the conpany filed
this with the M nnesota Pollution Control Authority
i ndependent of it filing with the M nnesota
Comm ssi on?

A No, they had to file it with the M nnesota
PUC, as well, but the M nnesota PUC was not going to
turn down the decision of the M nnesota Pollution
Control Authority.

Q Have you reviewed the record in the MERP
proceedi ngs?

A Not in any detail, no. What | reviewed is
t he conpany's own rendition of how this thing
unf ol ded.

Q And the company's rendition indicates that
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it did cost-benefit analysis of all the alternatives
and denonstrated the need for its projects?

A It denonstrated the need pursuant to the
pol lution control requirenments.

Q Wth regard to the King plant, is there
any reason, other than your assunption of
accel eration, that you use to justify this
al | owance?

A Well, the assunption -- you call it an
assunpti on. As | say, we can determ ne whether, in
fact, the MERP program caused the accel eration or
did not cause the acceleration of the King plant by
| ooking at the pre-MERP integrated resource plan.

Q What year would that be?

A | cannot say. | believe they file these

t hi ngs periodically.

Q They woul d have filed them every two
years?
A | don't know. What's the standard in

M nnesot a?

Q Every two years.

A All right. Then it was the preceding plan
prior to the enactnment of the MERP pl an.

Q Woul dn't it be two years before the filing

of the application?
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A The application for what?
Q The project's approval.
A No. No. It would be two years before the

enact ment of the MERP program

Q Why woul d the enactnment of the statute be
rel evant ?

A Because, as | said, it's all a package.
The statute, the plan and the advancenment of the
King plant would be a package. Now, if that's not
true, we'll know if we | ook at that pre-MERP |IRP.

Q Do incidents and facts change over tinme in
terms of a plant's availability, its quality of use?
A It's possible, but it's hard to believe
that in two years there would be a radical change,
unl ess there were a radical collapse in the quality
of the plant. You know, if a boiler blew up, that

woul d be a different story.
Q Ms. Engel king testifies the plant would
have been shut down in 2005 if it were not

rehabilitated. Do you dispute that?

A Yes.
Q On what factual basis?
A Ms. Engel king's own statement in our May 6

conference call.

Q What year would the plant have been
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Q What do you say?

A | don't say.

Q You don't know?

A | do know that she asserted that the plant
woul d have not -- would probably not have been

rehabilitated as soon as it was were it not for the

MERP program

Q Did you send any interrogatories to the
company asking for evidence and information about
the date on which it would have been rehabilitated

but for MERP?

A No, we didn't, because | was relying on
t hat st atement. Now, if | had known the statenment
was going to be retracted, | definitely would have

asked nore questions.

Q Did you do any analysis at all in ternms of

t he operating quality of the King plant?

A |'"'m not in a position to do that. | take

t he conpany's word for it. Agai n, the conmpany's

word was what | took. The conpany now retracts that

word, but there's an objective basis for determ ning

whet her the company is correct or |I'mcorrect.

Q And woul d that objective basis be the
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record in the 2003 to 5 MERP proceeding in which the
full factual analysis on the status and condition of
t he King plant was placed in the record?

A If that's the case, possibly.

Q Possi bl y?

A Well, if that's the preceding -- if that's
the plan that preceded the MERP program it's
probably the one to | ook at, yes.

Q Did you disallow all of the cost related
to the rehabilitation of the King plant?

A. Yes.

Q Now, Ms. Engelking testified that the
refurbishing restored 60 megawatts of capacity at
t he King plant. Do you dispute that?

A No.

Q Did you make an adjustment to your
di sal l owance to reflect the added capacity added
t hrough the rehabilitation?

A No, because the King plant had been a
cycling plant, anyway. MWhether it was needed or
not, | have not determ ned whether the 60 megawatts
wer e needed. Certainly, it's a benefit, but whether
it is a requirement, | cannot say.

Q W t hout proving it's not a requirenment,

should there be a disall owance?
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A Well, if the earlier IRP indicated that
t he King plant would not have been rehabilitated for
anot her two or three years, one assumes that it took
into account capacity requirements and the need or
not the need of the additional 60 megawatts.

Q M. Larson, in his direct testinmony,
states that the capacity factor for the King plant,
which was a base | oad plant, was down to 74 percent.
What's the normal capacity factor for a base | oad
pl ant ?

A Well, it was not my inmpression that the
Ki ng plant was a base | oad plant, but capacity
factor of 74 percent is not all that bad for what is
probably not the highest plant on the dispatch
order. Ms. Engel king indicated that even Sherco,
which is certainly higher on the dispatch order or
| ower in terms of cost, has been used for -- has
been forced to be used for a cycling purpose. | f
so, then the King plant, which is sort of next up on
t he di spatch, would have been used as a cycling
pl ant as wel |.

Q Did you hear Ms. Engel king testify
specifically that it was a base | oad plant used all
the time?

A. Well, it hadn't been built for that.




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

649
Whet her it was being used for that is a different
i ssue.

Q Now, if you take an increase from
74 percent capacity to 82 percent capacity, doesn't
t hat mean there's a 15 percent increase in
availability?

A well, first of all, if that's -- there's a
di fference between the capacity factor as the plant
was run and the capacity factor of what it could
have run at. And you just switched from what
understood to be a capacity factor of the plant as
run, not as avail abl e. But if you want to change
t hat definition, what you say is absolutely true.

Q Okay. The King plant is going to be able
to provide 60 nmore megawatts of capacity and energy
15 percent more of the time. And that extra energy
capacity is going to be provided proportionately to
North Dakota, will it not?

A Well, the capacity is allocated to North
Dakota. The energy is allocated as the plant is
used. \hether the plant, even in its rehabilitated
state, is used 24/7 is not a function of its
availability. It's a function of the | oad
variation, and whether the | oad variation requires

the full capacity all the time, | cannot say.




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

650

Q Are North Dakota customers entitled to
free energy and capacity?

A No.

Q So if the company has increased the
capacity of a base |oad coal plant by 60 megawatts
and 15 percent availability, should not those costs
be recovered proportionately fromthe customers who
use it?

A. Well, as | indicated, if the 60 -- 60
megawatts i s required i ndependent of the MERP
program which would be indicated by the pre- MERP
| RP, then you're right, it should be included. On
t he other hand, if the 60 megawatts happens to be a
bonus of advancing the rehabilitation of that plant
in order to reduce the pollution in the metro area
pursuant to a M nnesota program then | don't think
it should be allocated to North Dakota until it is
required by North Dakota | oad and along with all the
ot her states' | oads.

Q How shoul d the cost for the energy
actually used fromthat plant related to those
additional 60 megawatts and 15 percent availability
be recovered from North Dakota customers who use
t hat energy and capacity?

A Well, the energy is going to be recovered
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in any case, whether the plant is rehabilitated or
not, because even absent rehabilitation the plant
woul d still have been running, at least that's ny --
that is what is in dispute. But, as | said, it
woul d be determ ned by | ooking at the pre-MERP | RP.

Q M. King, what about the increnental
capacity and energy from that plant, how would we
recover that cost fromthe North Dakota customers
who use that energy and capacity?

A Well, first of all, there's no incremental
energy as a result of -- automatically incremental
energy as a result of the additional 60 megawatts.
The energy consumed is what is consumed and its
costs are appropriately allocable to North Dakot a.

I|f the plant weren't rehabilitated, either the plant
woul d have run, albeit not quite as efficiently and

ot her plants m ght have had to pick up that cost,

but all that energy cost would have been and wll be
recovered from North Dakota. As for the capacity,

it should be recovered from North Dakota ratepayers

if it is required by the combined | oads of all three
states when it is -- when it was made avail able. On
the other hand, if it's sinmply incremental capacity

that isn't required, that happens to be a by-product

of rehabilitating that plant, then it should not be




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

652
al | owed.

Q What evidence do you have that Xcel Energy
has added capacity it doesn't need to its systenf?

A | don't have any evidence at all, but it
could be determ ned, yes.

Q So if, in fact, Xcel Energy needed the
capacity that has added to its system it should be
all owed to recover those costs?

A Yes.

Q Are you proposing to disallow for High
Bridge the cost between the alternative of
rehabilitation as a coal plant and the cost of a new
gas-fired facility?

A Yes.

Q And is your disallowance based on the
conclusion that the rehabilitation alternative of
using coal would have been |l ess costly than the

repl acement plant using natural gas?

A You know, the big unknown is what it would
have cost to rehabilitate that plant. W know what
the differential in the fuel costs -- | mean in the

pollution em ssion control costs are, and what the
incremental costs of the High Bridge plant would
have been to further rehabilitate it, | don't know

and we -- that's one we did ask a very specific data
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request appointed directly to that question and we
got an evasi ve answer.

Q | s the capacity for the replacement gas
pl ant at High Bridge 515 megawatts?

A "Il take your word for it, yes.

Q And was the capacity of the old coal plant
at the High Bridge 272 megawatts?

A "Il take your word for it. Sounds about
right.

Q So there was a 243-megawatt increase in
capacity?

A Again, if that capacity was needed
i ndependent of the MERP project, the costs should be
al | owed. On the other hand, if the capacity was not
based on | oad requirements in 2008, but nerely a
hedge against future capacity requirements, then |
don't think it should be allowed in 2008 because the
company has tenporarily overbuilt its plant.

Q What evidence do you have that the conpany
has overbuilt its plant?

A Well, the evidence is that the conpany
subm tted in 2003 an alternative plan, which it was
quite willing to implement, and that plan would not
have significantly increased the capacity of the

Hi gh Bridge plant because it would have sinmply
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rehabilitated it as a coal unit. | f the company was
willing to offer that as a viable alternative to the
plan it adopted, it must not have needed the
additi onal capacity when it did. You can say, oh,
well, it had to build another plant. Possi bly, but
at that point they would have had a maj or change in
their IRP to build another plant if they kept the
Hi gh Bridge at its previous capacity.

Q The conmpany's testimony is that it would
have built another plant at a different |ocation.
Do you dispute that testimny?

A. If it had to close -- what | heard is if
it had to close the High Bridge plant, it would,

i ndeed, have had to build another plant. | don't

di spute that. What | dispute is whether --

Q M. King --
A ' m sorry. You want to disagree with me?
Q Yes, | do. The conmpany's testinony is

that if it had closed the King plant, it would have
had to build another | ocation. It could have
rehabilitated the Hi gh Bridge, but then it would
have needed to build another gas plant sonmepl ace
el se. Do you recall that testinmny?

A No. No, | don't recall that. But if the

conpany did make that testimony, they did not
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identify when that second plant would have had to
have been built, and if it had to have built by now,
t hen, indeed, it should be included. On the other
hand, if it would have had to have built, but not
until, say, 2010, then the capacity should not be
i ncluded.

Q M. King, at what point should conpanies
build new capacity? Should they build it two years
in advance of when they need it, two years after
they need it? When should they build it?

A Well, there's a certain |unpiness to
capacity and, normally, the plan is to maintain a
reserve margin of, say, 15 percent at all tinmes. So
you have to build for your expected |oad, plus
15 percent, and that capacity has to conme on-line in
order to maintain that reserve margin. Now, that's
what they should be building for. | have been in
cases where there's been recommendati ons and,

i ndeed, adoptions of disallowances for overbuil ding,

and it happens.

Q And in any of those cases is it done

wi t hout evidence that, in fact, it's been overbuilt?
A. Oh, there's evidence that it's overbuilt.
Q And is there evidence in this case it was

overbuilt?
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A | think so, yes.

Q And that evidence was, again, your
assunption the company woul d not have built the
extra plant?

A Well, | don't know the conmpany's
testified -- well, that it would not have built the
extra plant, yes, it would have, but when it would
have built, | don't know. And | think it probably
woul d not have been built until after the present
time because that appeared to be the proposal under
the alternative submtted in 2003.

Q And, again, have you reviewed the 2003 IRP
MERP process which discussed the need for and
justified the prudence of that additional plant?

A Well, you've just made a statement of fact
that | don't know to be true, that the 2002,

what ever it was, 2000 MERP IRP justified the need

for that additional plant. | don't know that that's
t he case. | don't have any evidence that it is.
Q Now, Ms. Engel king testifies that building

existing plant which is |ocated to the | oad being
served mtigates transm ssion congestion and that if
we used a different site, that would probably

i ncrease congesti on. Does increased transm ssion

congestion increase cost?
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A First of all, I'm not suggesting anything
be built on a different site. | don't know where
you got that an assunption.
Q Well, M. King, you can't build them both

at that site, can you?

A What -- the new plant?

Q And mai ntain the old plant.

A well, first of all, if you had to build
anot her plant, as |'ve said repeatedly and I'l|l say

it again, the issue is not whether you need to build
a new plant, but when. \When that new plant is
needed and if that new plant involves additional
transm ssion, indeed, all those costs should be
al | owed.

Q Ms. Engel king testified that if we had
waited to install a replacement plant, that the cost
woul d be at | east 33 percent higher.

Do you dispute that?

A Probably true.
Q Ms. Engel king testifies that --
A That's no excuse for building unneeded

capacity prematurely.
Q Depends on how premature, wouldn't it?
A Oh, yeah, 1'll buy that.

Q Ms. Engel king testifies that the
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operational flexibility provided by the new gas-
fired units provides inmproved systemreliability,
allowing the systemto respond rapidly to hourly
changes and inproving its ability to use Sherco.

Do you disagree with that?

A | don't know that | do. | can't say one
way or anot her.

Q Have you done any nodeling that disputes
Xcel Energy's conclusion that the characteristics of
a gas plant |located at the High Bridge |ocation
better fits its resource needs?

A Repeat that question

Q Have you done any nodeling that disputes
Xcel Energy's conclusion that the characteristics of
a gas plant at the High Bridge |ocation better fits
its resource needs?

A No, | haven't made that. I'mnot in a
position to do so, but, again, the issue has to do
with whether the High Bridge plant expansion of
capacity as a gas-fired conbined-cycle turbine is
required in 2008 to meet the conpany's needs.

Q M. Rosvold testified that conversion from
a coal-fired plant at High Bridge and Riverside to
nat ural gas plant saves the company and its

rat epayers between $52 mllion and $96 mllion a
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year in avoided NOx purchase all owances.
Do you dispute that testinmony?

A | don't dispute it, but then there's other
costs that probably swing the other way, such as
fuel. Gas is very expensive. Coal is certainly
cheaper and it is a more stable price because it's
based typically on nultiyear contracts.

Q You proposed disallowi ng 25 percent of the
cost of generation and transm ssion fromthe Grand
Meadow wind farm  Are you proposing that
di sal |l owance because the wind farm was required to
be | ocated in M nnesota and because you believe that
wind in North Dakota will support a 25 percent
hi gher capacity factor than M nnesota?

A That's basically the basis. This is
difficult because we're dealing with a subopti mal
solution, but the company has never nodel ed whet her
it is a suboptimal conclusion or whether North
Dakota woul d have been cheaper. The evidence is
t hat capacity factors in North Dakota are higher
than they are in M nnesota and, as a consequence, a
Nort h Dakota | ocation probably would have been
better.

Q What's the --

A All I"'mtrying to do is get some
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reflection --

MR. BRADLEY: Your Honor --

JUDGE WAHL: Let him finish.

THE W TNESS: All I'"mtrying to do is get
some reflection of the fact that a M nnesota w nd
farmis now being forced on the conmpany even though
t he conpany has been unable to denonstrate that that
was the -- fromthe get-go the |east-cost sol ution.
Bear in mnd, |'m not --

MR. BRADLEY: Your Honor, please.

THE W TNESS: Go ahead. All right. 111
be qui et. Fire away.

Q (MR. BRADLEY CONTI NUI NG) What is the
assumed capacity factor for North Dakota that you're

using? 1Is it 40 percent?

A Forty to 50 percent. Obviously, there's
no one capacity factor that fits all |ocations, but
all you have to do is |look at the map and see -- the

wind map which M. Diller has and see that North
Dakota has much better wi nd resources than
M nnesot a.

Q Buffalo Ridge is equal, is it not, on that
map to the North Dakota resources, smaller, but the
capacity is the same?

A That's true. It's significantly smaller,




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

661
t hough, and nuch nmore --

Q And Buffalo Ridge is much closer to the
| oad for Xcel Energy than the North Dakota | ocations
are conpared to its | oad?

A Well, it's not closer to the North Dakota
| oad center.

Q Have you done any studies to determ ne
whet her or not you could put 100 megawatts of w nd
and use it just for the North Dakota | oad and what
t he consequences would be in the cost of service to
North Dakota if we did that?

A Well, you wouldn't make it -- nothing is
exclusive to any state's | oad. But as you have
stated, the closer you are to the | oad center,
presumably the better. Probably the North Dakota
wi nd woul d have predom nantly served energy needs in
North Dakota. Simply because that's the nearest
| oad center. The M nnesota wind farm may benefit
Nort h Dakota because the power has to flow up to the
Twin Cities and back out to North Dakota. Whether
that is done routinely, I don't know, but the
practical matter is that all power goes into a
common pool .

Q And, in fact, the North Dakota customers

are benefited by the M nnesota wi nd power because
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it's cheaper than our system average cost of energy?

A That's right. And ny suggestion is -- and
we'll never know -- the North Dakota wi nd power
m ght have been cheaper yet. You see, |'m not

obliged to prove the conpany's optimal plan. What |
am obliged to do is point out that the company has
not proved that its plan is optimal, and that's ny
contention.

Q Ms. Engel king testifies it will take many
years for M SO to connect all currently proposed
wi nd projects. Do you dispute that?

A No.

Q Ms. Engel king testifies that the Grand
Meadows project was advanced in that queue and
all owed access to interconnection in a time frame

desired by the conmpany. Do you dispute that?

A You know, | don't dispute it. | don't
know how t hey managed to pull that off, but | don't
know why it would -- if they could pull it off in

M nnesota, they could have pulled it off in North
Dakota for whatever the reasons are, the sane
reasons. Had the whole thing been built in

M nnesota, we don't know whether it would have been
advanced, but it probably would have, if the conmpany

coul d have swung it one way or another.
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Q Wasn't the Grand Meadow project an
existing project that was already in the queue and,
therefore, they pulled it off because it was there?

A Well, I don't know that, but what | do
know is, the reason it's in Mnnesota is that the
M nnesota Legislature forced the company to build
wind in Mnnesota and it had to build it, as a
consequence, at Buffalo Ridge, put in a transm ssion
plan -- line and, subsequently, the company deci ded
to construct Grand Meadows. How it got in the
queue, | don't know.

Q Ms. Engel king testified that the Grand
Meadow proj ect, because it was an advanced project,
was able to qualify for federal tax benefits worth
$20 per megawatt-hour? Do you dispute that?

A | don't dispute that. It certainly would
have been true in North Dakota as well.

Q |f the project were far enough along to be
completed in time and connected in time to the
network, interconnection to the transm ssion
network, to qualify for the federal tax; is that
correct?

A If fromthe get-go the conpany had been
able to test whether North Dakota or Buffalo Ridge

were the better |locations for wind and if the
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company had picked North Dakota, then all of the
advant ages that now accrue to the M nnesota
operation would have accrued to North Dakota. There
is no reason why they should not have.

Q So if the Grand Meadow project has the
same capacity factor of 40 percent as North Dakota
and it provides tax benefits which reduce the cost
by 25 percent, you would still support disall owance?

A | support disallowance for the sinmle
reason that the conmpany has failed to denmonstrate
t hat construction of the Buffalo Ridge wind farns
and the Buffalo Ridge connector to the Twin Cities
was the optimal solution. The company has an
obligation at all times from the North Dakot a
standpoint to denonstrate that its plan was the
optimal solution to the conpany's requirements. W
don't know whet her the Buffalo Ridge plan was that
optimal, and the reason we don't know is the company
was forced by M nnesota to build that line to
M nnesota wind farnms and, consequently, to the
Buffalo -- to the Grand Meadow wi nd farm

Q You' ve proposed disallowi ng the costs for
three refuse-derived fuel facilities; Red W ng,

W Il marth and French Island plants; is that correct?

A Yeah, |'ve done that. Possibly that's one
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that |'ve overdone, because the company says they
built those plants | ong before the MERP program and
| probably ought to draw back on that disall owance.

Q s it your recomendation to w thdraw that
proposal ?

A | think so, yes.

Q M. King, am | correct that you have
removed the 2008 test year costs associated with
mercury em ssions because of the belief that
M nnesota standards for mercury were nore severe
t han the EPA standards?

A No, because the mercury programisn't in
pl ace. It's not used and useful for the benefit of
rat epayers anywhere, | et alone M nnesota. You don't
get to charge for facilities or programs that are
not i mpl ement ed.

Q Did you hear M. Rosvold's testinmny that
none of those future mercury investment costs were
in the 2008 test year?

A Well, that's what he says, but then it
turns out there's nmoney in the 2008 test year for
the mercury program anyway. That's what your data
response said.

Q The testinmony, | believe, M. King, if you

agree with me, is that there's a rider in Mnnesota
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that allows em ssion costs to be recovered and that
the em ssion costs that are being recovered in 2008
are al nost exclusively or 80 percent NOx rel ated?

A well, if that's true, all right, if they
are for current NOx abatement. One of the things
that disturbs me is |I'm not sure the standards for
the em ssions rider conmport with North Dakota |aw in
t hat regard. If -- and | don't know this, but it's
the company's job to denonstrate. If the em ssions
rider allows recovery of advanced costs for future
em ssion control prograns, which it m ght, after al
the thing was written by the NSP, if that's the
case, then they're all quite suitable for recovery
in Mnnesota, but against the |law for recovery in
Nort h Dakot a.

Q In short, you don't know what the conpany

included in its 2008 test year for cost recovery?

A You know, it isn't nmy job to do all this
research. It's the company's job to denonstrate
t hat what | have said is not true. It's the

company's job to denmonstrate that there are no
advanced em ssions costs incorporated in the North
Dakota revenue requirenment, regardless of whether

t hose em ssions costs are recoverable in M nnesota.

Q M. Rosvold identified as the only




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

667
M nnesot a- mandat ed costs included in a 2008 budget
the cost of mercury nonitoring, which is the cost of
about $12,000. Was installing that equipnment a
necessary cost of doing business?

A It's necessary, but it's not for a current
program and that's the test. | mean, exanmple, when
you go to build a plant, you can't start charging
for the construction costs of that plant prior to
t hat plant going in service. Now, no one says that
it's not -- that those construction costs aren't
necessary for the provision of service, just it
isn't necessary now. It's necessary in the future.

Q The company doesn't have a current need to

know how much mercury it's emtting?

A | cannot say.
MR. BRADLEY: Your Honor, |'m about to
start a whole new area of depreciation. | don't
know i f --

JUDGE WAHL: This woul d be an excell ent
time to take a recess. We'll be in recess until
9: 30.

(Recess was taken.)

JUDGE WAHL.: Let's proceed. We're on the
record.

M. Bradley.
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MR. BRADLEY: Thank you, Your Honor.

Q (MR. BRADLEY CONTINUING) M. King, in
your introductory argunments you were expl aining why
you t hought, particularly for production plants, it
was nore reasonable to use a remaining life.

Do you recall that?

A. Yes.

Q Woul d you please turn to your Exhibit
CWK- 8, page 1377

A (Wtness conplies.) All right.

Q Isn't that the company's application for
approval of a certificate of its 2008 review of
remaining lives for its production plant?

A. Yes.

Q So, in fact, Xcel Energy does use

remaining life for its production plant?

A Well, they use that --
Q | believe that's a yes or no.
A Well, they don't use -- they use remaining

life. They don't use the remaining-life

depreci ation cal culation. There is a distinction.
They use the remaining |ife to derive a life span.
Life span then becones the basis for their

depreci ation rate.

Q And it's reviewed annually?
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A The Iife span is reviewed annually, keeps
changing, and that's really the problem

Q The Conmmi ssion uses straight-1line
depreciation for recovering asset investment costs?

A Yes.

Q And under straight-line depreciation
rat epayers pay the same depreciation expense in each
year of the asset's |ife?

A That's correct.

Q And currently cost of retirement is

f orecast ed?

A Yes.
Q |s the forecasted cost then recovered
currently using a straight-line cost recovery

mechani sm | i ke depreciation?

A Well, there's a big difference. The basis
for the straight-line depreciation is fixed because
it is money that's already been spent. The basis
for the removal cost is not fixed. lt's money that
hasn't been spent. And it's projected out -- it is
projected fromthe future. As a consequence, it
does not necessarily stay fixed. As a practical
matter, it declines over |ife because in real terns
it is an ever |ess burdensome nunber.

Q | nstead of using the forecasted future
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cost of rempval, do you propose determ ning the
removal cost including rates the average cost of
removal during the most recent five-year period?

A Only as a tenporary substitute. What |'m
proposing, really, is we do future cost of renmoval,
but express it in current doll ars.

Q Hypot hetically, if we plan to renmove an
asset in the year 2030, under your nmethodol ogy we
woul d not include in current rates the future cost
of removing that asset?

A Oh, we would include the future cost of
removi ng that asset expressed in current dollars.
You only express dollars you're collecting in this
year in dollars valued at this year.

Q Using the five-year average methodol ogy,
we woul d not be recovering the cost of that future
asset?

A Well, again, let's not focus on that

five-year average.

Q Can you answer my question first and then
expl ai n?

A Well, the answer is we would be recovering
a substitute for my -- for the estimte of the

future cost of removal expressed in current doll ars.

As |'ve indicated, the studies |I've mde in other
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utilities, the two come out very simlar, and they
shoul d.
Q | nstead of using the amount in current

rates based on the cost of that actual future asset,
we woul d be based on an average cost of renoval
during the 2002 to 2006 period?

A Well, that, as | say, is the surrogate
that |I'm using for what should be used, which is an
expression of the future cost of renoval expressed
in current dollars.

Q So your preferred approach is to use
present value of future retirement costs?

A Exactly.

Q Woul d the present-val ue approach take the
projected retirement cost and remove the effective

inflation?

A Exactly.
Q So let's see if we can do a hypothetica
so we get an understanding of this. If we were to

have a forecasted cost of $100 for retirement and
that retirement is to occur in 10 years, under the
current met hodol ogy, that $100 retirement cost woul d
be recovered by charging $10 per year for 10 years;
is that correct?

A. That's correct.
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Q Under the present-value nmethod, we would
deval ue that $100 by the inflation rate used, and

for purposes of discussion, let's assume a 5 percent

inflation rate. Is that acceptable to you?
A That's a bit high, but we'll assume it.
Q The math is easier. So if we have -- if

we're going to try to devalue that $100 back using
5 percent inflation rate for 10 years, subject to
check or if you want to take the time to do the

mat h, woul d you agree we would end up with a $64.50

rate?
A well, 1'll take your word for it. In the
first year. But now that rate increases every year.
Q We're going to come to that. So instead

of being a $10 rate, we'd have a $6.45 rate?
A Ri ght .
Q So if we use your graph that we've been

usi ng, point Ato B would be $10?

A. Yeah.

Q Poi nt C woul d be $6.45?

A. Correct.

Q If we go five years into the future --

A. Yeah.

Q -- we would still take that $100 cost and

we woul d deflate the cost by the 5 percent for five
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years; is that correct?
A Ri ght. Right.
Q Agai n, subject to check and |I'd be happy
to wait for you to do the math, would the new
cost -- |I've got to do the math nysel f.
A "Il take your word for it, if it's

somet hing I ess than $10.

Q | came up with $15.67.
A |'"m sorry. \hen?
Q Five years. W've got a 10-year period,

so it coll apses everything quickly.
A Yeah, but it wouldn't go up to $15. It
woul d be something | ess than $10.
Q Well, the deflated value of five years
woul d be $78.25, rather than the $67 we had before?
A Yeah, okay. So it would be an annual
charge of $7 and whatever, 60 cents.

Q And you're right. | did the math wrong.
When | divided by 12, it's $6.53.

A Right. Divide by 12, right. O 10,
rather. \hatever.

Q Actual ly, yeah, we would divide it by 10.
We're doing annually here.

A Right. Right. Right.

Q So it isn't by 12. It actually would be
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by five years, would it not?

A No. No, it would be by 10.

Q Now, we started out with a 10-year life?
A. Yeah.

Q We noved out five years into the future?
A. Yeah.

Q We devalued it five years?

A. Yeah.

Q Which got us to the -- |I've got to do the

mat h agai n.

A You get a value -- we'll say 76 bucks for
the final retirement. And you divide that by the
life of the plant.

Q Which is now five years?

A No. The life span is still 10. Remai ni ng
life is 5, but the life span is 10.

Q So you would not -- all right.

A No. No. You don't change the service
life just because some of the life is expired.

Q On a remaining-life method you woul d?

A No. No. You don't. Remaining life
doesn't work that way, because remaining life
doesn't divide the entire anmount by the remaining
life. MWhat it divides by the remaining life is the

unrecovered amount. I n other words, you take the --
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in this case, the 100 bucks and you back out all the
renmoval cost you' ve already accrued and then you
di vide the remai ning present value renoval cost.

Q But, M. King, the problemwith if that
were the correct answer, if I'"'min year 10 when |I'm

going to depreciate it and remove it --

A Yeah.

Q -- our rate would only have gotten to be
$10?

A That's right.

Q We woul d never have gotten above |ine B?

A What you're saying is, if you accrue
current value year by year, will you have accrued

the full amount of the renoval cost by the time you
get there? The answer is not in current dollars,
no, you would not, but then there's two factors.
One is the conpany has the money and it is getting
t he benefit of the use of that nmoney in the
meant i me. Part of that benefit is the fact that it
got the money before the end of the 10 years and,
therefore, it can enmploy that noney for -- as an
alternative to expensive debt and equity issues.
That's one consi deration.

The other and really more inportant one is

t hat we never are depreciating single assets. W're
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never accruing renoval costs for single assets.
We're accruing removal costs for nultiple assets
that go into a pool of accrued removal costs. And
as a consequence, that pool should not be any | arger
than it needs to be. | f you continue to accrue, as
the conmpany is presently doing, which is to
anticipate distant future costs and try to recover
t hose future costs in their full anmount, you wil

al ways build that pool higher than it's needed at

the tinme. It will always, always be not only | arge,
but it will be growi ng because the accounts are
gr owi ng.

M. WAatson was tal king about the actual
pl ant accounts, said they're all new. Well, there
always will be new. That's a permanent condition of
T&D plants. They're always new. And the reason
they' re always new is two things; one is the system
is always growing so you're always addi ng more pl ant
than you're retiring, and the other is the dollars
are al ways growi ng because of the effect of
inflation, and that's the reason the conpany has
accrued $372 mllion of renoval costs that it will
not spend, because forever and ever, as long as it
uses this straight-line accrual process, that $372

mllion will grow.
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Q M. King, is that an information response
t hat you provided to the company?

A (Wtness reviews docunent.) All right.
Let me see if | remenber this. M. King proposed a
removal tracker where the annual renmoval is gathered
bet ween rate cases and then anortized to future
customers over five years subsequent to the new rate
structure being put in place. I f not, M. King
woul d all ow the conpany recovery costs renoval. No,
it is noted on page 32, ny preferred recommendation
is that future renmoval costs be restated at their
present dollar val ue. Use of the five-year
hi storical average is admttedly a stop-gap measure
resulting fromthe absence of vintage plant data.
Preferred approach woul d set production plant
removal cost allowances in a simlar manner as the
tracker suggests in the question. That is because
the re-prescription remval cost allowances woul d
follow the schedule in the remaining life of the
depreciation re-prescriptions established by the
M nnesota PUC. Production plant remaining |lives are
re-prescri bed every year, and as part of that
process the renoval cost allowances coul d be reset
to reflect their current remaining accrual periods.

The transm ssion, distribution and general plant
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accounts are reconsidered every three years at those
re-prescriptions. Any changes in the present val ue
of future renoval costs could be established
relative to the m ddle year of the next three-year
cycle. Any problemw th that?

Q No, M. King. M problemwith that is
let's tal k about the underrecovery that's occurring
under this process and how do we catch up?

A You don't ever -- first of all, it isn't
an underrecovery and you're not going to have to
worry about catching up, because absent a
restatenment of these costs into their present val ue,
you're going to accrue supplemental and additional
removal cost reserves in growi ng amounts forever

Q By your met hodol ogy, at |east as you've
attenmpted to describe it today, the line never
crosses line A and B. It eventually reaches it at

the end of 10 years?

A That's true.

Q How do we recover the cost below line A
and B?

A Because you're going to have yet nore
pl ant added, which will begin to accrue costs

against a future removal, and you never wi nd up

removing all your plant.
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Q If 1 have --

A These are flows of money and we're trying
to match the flowin to the flow out in a realistic
manner that makes sure that you al ways have enough
in that reserve to cover your removal costs and that
shoul d be the objective. It should not be to soak
present ratepayers to build an accrual against a
future cost expressed in future doll ars.

Q |f we have a $50 million retirement cost
for a plant |ike Sherco --

A M- hmm

Q -- and under your nmethodol ogy we've
recovered $25 mllion, as you've never gotten up
t here. You never crossed the A-B |ine. Now we have
to recover the $25 mllion from future customers; is
t hat correct?

A No, you're not, because you will have at

t hat poi nt have built another plant to replace

Sherco and that other plant will simlarly have a
forecast removal cost and you'll be accruing for
t hat . You' Il have a pot of gold to pay for the

Sherco takedown.
Q So your concept is, we'll just always
underrecover for future plants, as long as the

company never goes out of business, who cares?
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A No, that's not the objective. The
objective is to match present responsibility to
present costs. And the responsibility admttedly is
to renove the plant in the future, but it's patently
unfair to express those in dollars that haven't
materialized, and that's what we're trying to do.

Q | want to call your attention to the
sentence in the response that said, The preferred
approach would set production plant renoval cost
all owances in a simlar manner as the tracker
suggests in the question, which means that the
amounts that are underrecovered in year one would be
recovered in year two.

What happened to the recognition of that
sentence in your exanple?

A Where did you get -- | don't understand

t hat questi on.

Q That's the third sentence in your
response.

A. Well, no, but let's see what the
tracker -- cost of removal tracker where the actual

removal i s gathered between rate cases and then
amortized to future customers. | guess | don't
under stand the questi on.

Q Do you understand your answer?
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A Well, | understand ny answer, what | don't
understand is the assumed nature of the tracker.
Explain that to me.

Q The assumed nature of the tracker was what
you explained in your diagramto us, is that when we
eventually need to cover up -- recover the amounts
t hat are underrecovered to actually at the end of
that life recover the same dollars, that you have to
have gone back and recovered those in rates as we go
forward?

A No. No. You will have built -- you wil
have built a reserve. That reserve is based on al
of the units of plant in the account. The reserve
al so includes all of your power plants and you're
accruing that reserve against all the collective
future renoval costs. That reserve should be
adequate to cover renoval costs as they are incurred
and under ny system there will always be enough in
t hat removal cost reserve to cover all renoval
costs.

And the reason is, you will always be
capturing future removal cost expressed in current
dollars for the entire panoply of assets, those that
are being retired this year, next year and 10 years,

20 years into the future. As a consequence, the
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reserve will always be sufficient to recover current
removal cost.

Q M. Majoros sat here in that same chair
yesterday and repeatedly, repeatedly, repeatedly
said line A-B dollars and line C-D dollars are the

same. Do you recall that?

A | can't recall that, but that's all right.
Q So he was wrong then?
A Well, in nom nal dollars that m ght appear

to be the case. As a practical matter, your reserve
wi || always be adequate to cover renmoval costs
because you're accruing costs for future renoval
costs of the entire range of assets.

Q In order to recover the same dollars under
both systenms so that we have the same amount of
money to retire the asset debt at the time of
retirement, isn't it true that you have to set rates
hi gher than $10 at some point during the life of
t hat asset?

A |f you focus on a single asset that m ght
be true, but we're not dealing with single assets.
We're dealing with mass -- with -- in the case of
T&D, mass property accounts. In the case of
production plants, we're dealing with multiple

production plants. W're always accruing for a
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whol e range of future removal costs and we're doing
those in current dollars. \When any one plant goes,
there will always be enough noney to cover the cost
of that plant and that should be the objective of
the rempval cost reserve. It should not be the
obj ective of that renmoval cost reserve to build an
enor mous ampunt, hundreds of mllions of dollars,
that will permanently be there and will, as a
consequence of the system never be spent. That's
what the present system does.

Q And those dollars are used as an offset to

depreci ati on expense and offset to rate base?

A They're not an offset to depreciation
expense at all. They are --

Q | m sspoke myself. They're an offset to
the asset -- excuse nme. They're an offset to rate

base, are they not?

A Well, 1've heard this, and this is a
favorite saw of utilities that, well, we don't have
to really worry about overdepreciation, because
rat epayers get it back in the form of reduced rate
base. And that's absolutely phony. And the reason
it's phony is just figure out the math. I f you
increase -- if you decide that you're going to over-

depreciate by $100, you are in the current year
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charging ratepayers an additional, unnecessary $100
in expense and $100 does go in as a rate base
of fset, but the return on rate base is only $10 so
the ratepayers are $90 behind. And it's not an
of fset. It's not an even thing. Rat epayers cone
out behind any time you overstate depreciation
unnecessarily.

Q Now, under your hypothetical and your
process as you explained it today, when we recover
half the cost of retiring Sherco and this conmpany

comes back to this Comm ssion and says we want to

recover $25 mllion from future ratepayers --
A No.
Q -- won't this Comm ssion approve

aut hori zation of recovering expenses?

A No. No. |If the Commi ssion knows what
it's doing, and | think it does, it will say what do
you mean $25 mllion from future ratepayers? You've
got $342 mllion in your renoval cost reserve. You

take it out of there. And you' ve got plenty of
money to pay for the cost of Sherco, and the reason
you have plenty of money is you're not just accruing
removal costs for Sherco, you're accruing removal
costs for every other plant, including the plant

t hat repl aces Sherco.
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Q So your assunption is the balance in that
account should be zero?
A No, it shouldn't be zero, but it should be
one heck of a lot less than it is right now.
Q Do you know how many assets it costs and
billions of dollars of assets this conmpany has

t hroughout this systen?

A It's in many billions, right.

Q Let's tal k about |ife extension of Sherco.
A. Yeah.

Q At the time the conpany filed its

testinony it had originally projected a retirement

date of 20109. It's now, in M. Robinson's rebuttal

testinmony, increased that to 2022; is that correct?
A Patently absurd date, but that's what

M . Robi nson says.

Q And under your proposal, the plant would
have a useful |ife of 59 years?

A Ri ght .

Q And using a 2022 retirement, two of the
units would have a useful life of 47 years and one
of the units would have a useful |ife of 34 years;

am | correct about that?
A | guess. | think you're right. That's

ridicul ous. They're not going to retire those
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pl ants -- that plant in 2022.

Q Now, you've proposed 59 years based on a
study you've done that shows that the average age of
steam plants at the time of retirement was 59 years?

A Ri ght .

Q And that was based on, if | may show you
the follow ng raw data?

A. Yes.

Q Okay. Now, this is a document -- and the
reason |I'm not distributing it broader is it is
shown to be confidential. Is it, in fact,
confidential ?

A Oh, it's not really -- this is public
i nformati on. Where does it say -- oh. It's
confidential because our study is a trade product.
It's not a -- it's something we did.

Q Okay. So you don't have --

A This is all data from EIA. So you can get
it any time you want.

Q So you don't have a problemwith me
distributing it to the Comm ssioners?

A | have no problem

Q Now, this has 86 plants in it, as | can
tell by going to the bottom of page 2 of the

ri ght -hand colum --
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A. Yes.

Q -- and | can see the age of retirement is
the second colum to the right?

A. Yeah.

Q So out of 86 plants, three made it to 59
or later?

A No, | don't believe this. 1've got to

| ook at the --

Q This is your data, is it not?

A Yeah, but |I'mnot sure it's the conplete
set .

Q It's what you provided us.

A Well, this wouldn't average this 59. |

know our study denmonstrated 59. So | don't know
what's wrong with it. This is the first time |'ve
exam ned this particular document and it may be we

just didn't give you all the information.

Q Well, my analyst ran your analysis.
A Oh, yeah, | understand, and if you | ook at
this number, you won't get 69 -- 59.

Q No. They got 56.

A They got 567

Q When they ran all the information you
provi ded.

A All right.
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Q But this shows, in fact, that four plants
made it past 59 years; is that correct?

A Yeah, but | don't think this is right, and
| have to check on why, what the problemis, because
you wouldn't get -- | don't think you would get our
results with just this data. So |'msorry.

Q Now, you've testified that in order to get
beyond the current |life of Sherco and Prairie
| sl and, you recognize you would have to do
addi tional rehabilitation; is that correct?

A Oh, yeah.

Q The King plant had to be rehabilitated at
$241 mllion, was it, or --

A Yeah. And that's how all these plants
survive

Q So don't we normally match expenses such

that we would match the life to that investment?

A Well, you do through the remaining-life
procedure if you use the remaining-life procedure.

Q Whi ch the company does for its production
pl ant, does it not?

A Well, yeah, not really. It doesn't do the
proper remaining-life calculation. But what you say
is true, when you add refurbishments, you're going

to depreciate those refurbishments a whol e | ot
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faster than you depreciated the initial investment.

Q Do you dispute M. Robinson's testimny in
terms of what it would take to refurbish Sherco in
order to get to 59 years?

A Well, you know, | dispute it because |'m
not sure you would keep Sherco as a base | oad pl ant
all 59 years. The typical fate of nost steam plants
is they start out as base | oads and then as
technol ogy i mproves and these plants age, they
really are not up to or not efficient to provide
base | oad energy and they become cycling or
intermedi ate plants. So if Sherco were to evol ve
into an intermedi ate plant, clearly a |lot of the
equi pment would not need to be replaced nearly as
much -- as soon.

Q Have you done an engi neering study to
support that?

A You know, | don't have to do an
engi neering study. This is common know edge
t hroughout the industry that's what happens to coal
pl ants.

Q The conpany's testinmony, M. Robinson's,
is that in 2022 wi thout those rehabilitations, you
woul d shut the plant down?

A Well, you probably -- you m ght, but you
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have to put the rehabilitations in and when you do,
you' |l | depreciate them but the fact that you' ve got
to spend noney in the future is absolutely no excuse
for overdepreciating the present plant. It's no

excuse, fl at-out.

Q So you don't intend to match the cost of a
pl ant - -

A Of course, | do. As you put that
additional investment in the plant, it will be
depreci at ed. Not before, but then it will be
depreci at ed. But you don't -- sinmply because you've

got to invest in the future, you don't over-
depreciate the present plant. That's flat-out wrong

from a depreciation theory standpoint.

Q And you did not include any rehabilitation
expense as an offset to your |life extension?

A Well, come on, you don't depreciate
i nvest ment before it's made. ' mtal king about the

investment that now is in those plants and that
investment is not going to retire in 2022, flat-out.
Q | would like to show you another raw data
t hat you supplied to us in an information response
related to |lives of combustion turbines.
Now, do the service lives for Xce

Energy's conbustion turbines range right now from 30
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to 57 years?

A "Il take your word for it. 1've got that
chart somewhere.

Q And you're proposing that we increase five
of those conbustion turbines up to 45 years?

A Yeah, because that's the average service
life of combustion turbines. Again, it's absurd to
assume these things will be retired prematurely.

Q And you' ve not proposed reducing those
t hat have | onger than average back down to average?

A No, because they've already survived
beyond t hat average.

Q And your assunption for going to 45 years
was your national study on conbustion turbines?

A Ri ght .

Q And |'ve presented you with the raw data
on retirement units for combined, which |I believe is
everything except for steam turbines; is that
correct?

A Well, | don't think there are any combi ned
cycle combustion turbines in here because that's a
new technol ogy and there have been no retirements
for that.

Q ' m | ooking at the top title here, raw

data retired units-conbi ned.
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A | don't know what "conbined" means. It
isn'"t -- oh, I think it means conbined for all types
of conmbusti on turbines.

Q Right. And, in fact, you have -- if we
| ook under the fourth colum fromthe left, we have
prime nover, you have I C, and those are internal
conmbustion, are they not?

A Yeah.

Q And Xcel doesn't have any internal
combustion, does it?

A No.

Q And if we go over to page 2, about a third
of the way down, we have our first GI. MWhat's a GT?

A Gas turbine.

Q Gas turbine. Xcel does have some gas
turbi nes?

A Yeah.

Q And if we run our finger over to the
right, we would find that that was installed in 1948
and it was retired in 1978?

A. VWhi ch one?

Q The first GT that we encounter, gas
tur bi ne.
A Oh, I'msorry. On what page?

Q It's on page 2.
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A This is a nultipage. | don't see -- oh,
t he one down here. Yeah, | see what you nean.
Q Okay. Am | reading this correctly, that

t hat plant was installed in 1948 and retired in

19787
A. Yeah.
Q So that plant made it 30 years?
A Ri ght. Right.
Q And if we were to go through this item by

item we'd be able to determine the Iife of each --
there are GI's and CT's in here?

A Yeah.

Q And we would be able to determine the life

of each of those based on this?

A Yeah.
Q Okay. Is it correct that --
A Unfortunately, not a whole | ot of gas

turbi nes have been retired so you have a pretty thin
sample if you just focus on that.

Q | believe you have 372 GT's and CT's in
this study?

A "Il take your word for it. Out of the
total, you'll see that nost are |IC s.

Q Yes. Out of the 372 GI's and CT's, am |

correct that one had a life of nore than 45 years?
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A | can't say. You see, the problemis

that's a fairly new technol ogy and so what you're
getting is an observation of the retirements of the
earliest units. You're not getting what we call a
full-life experience. Il n other words, you're not
getting a full cycle of these things. That's why we
have the I1C's in there, because for those we have
the full cycle. It goes fromvirtually all plants
that were installed initially, in the initial years,
are now retired so we now know for those plants the
full pattern, but for the GI's, we're sinmply getting
the front end of the retirement curve and that's why
it turns out they turn out to have |less than the

average service life.

MR. BRADLEY: Your Honor, | have deci ded,
based on his |ast answer, | would |like to make these
exhi bits and put themin the record. | ' ve got extra
copi es.

JUDGE WAHL: Well, let's identify them

My next number is 35, counsel, and | do have the
| ast handout .

MR. BRADLEY: We'l| get you the first one,
Your Honor.

JUDGE WAHL: ' m sorry. | have the first.

Al'l right. Now | have them bot h.
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So, counsel, referring to the first
handout, that's the two-page handout, how would you
identify it, please?

MR. BRADLEY: | would refer to these as
steam plant retirement |ives.

JUDGE WAHL: So will you mark them as one
exhibit or two?

MR. BRADLEY: | would do the two pages as
one exhibit.

JUDGE WAHL: No. No. | understand that.
So this one is called steam plant retirement |ives?

MR. BRADLEY: Correct.

JUDGE WAHL: All right. For the record,
that's Exhibit 35.

M . Bahr?

MR. BAHR: Your Honor, we will object to
the adm ssion of both of these, either of these
exhi bits, absent all the information provided in
response. Otherw se, the Comm ssion is only getting
partial response and it cannot be fully expl ained.

JUDGE WAHL: M. Bradley?

MR. BRADLEY: Your Honor, this is the only
information we were provided that gave us the raw
data upon which the studies were conduct ed. | f

there's nore information, they failed to provide us,
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that's one thing.

JUDGE WAHL: No, | understood that the
obj ection was based on the request to provide all of
the response which included this exhibit.

Am | correct in that?

MR. BAHR: Correct. There would be --
don't believe just this was submtted.

MR. BRADLEY: That was about four inches
worth of material. This is the only information we
needed.

MR. BAHR: That's the point. The four
inches of material explains all this and puts it all
into context.

MR. BRADLEY: | f advocacy staff would Iike
to make a late-filed exhibit of all of that
i nformati on, we have no objection. | don't have
that full study with me.

JUDGE WAHL: Well, but it's avail able?

MR. BRADLEY: It's avail abl e. It's about

four inches thick.

JUDGE WAHL: Well, | know, but that's the
rul e.

MR. BRADLEY: And |I'm not objecting to the
rul e. |"mjust trying to figure out a sinple way of

getting it sol ved.
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JUDGE WAHL: There probably isn't,
M. Bradley. You know, as | understand the rule,
you can't be selective about information from a
source upon an objection that it can only be
understood in the context of the source.

MR. BRADLEY: Can we make a single exhibit
t hen, Your Honor, since there will be no reason to
make dual exhibits and supply the entire study as a
| ate-filed exhibit?

JUDGE WAHL.: So what are we tal king about,
M. Bahr, M. Bradley? Wis this a request by, what,
NSP to advocacy staff of what?

MR. BRADLEY: M. King testified that he
relied on a national study done by Snavely King.
We' ve got another problem I'll have to address in a
second here. A national study addressed by Snavely
King that determ ned that the average life of a
steam plant was 59 years and based upon which he
concl uded that our conbustion plants should be
45 years. We asked for a copy of the study. It was
provided. This is the raw data, as it indicates,
raw data retired units.

JUDGE WAHL: Which was part of the study
whi ch you were provided?

MR. BRADLEY: MWhich is, by the way, a
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proprietary study to Snavely and King. Now we have
anot her problem

JUDGE WAHL: M. Bahr?

MR. BAHR: | "ve been informed that they
are willing to make it unproprietary for purposes of
this proceedi ng.

MR. BRADLEY: Then there's not a problem

JUDGE WAHL: | don't think there is,
ei t her. So, M. Bahr, what is that -- |'mjust
going to make a note on what | have marked here as

Exhi bit 35. So what is this? How do we identify
now, M. Bahr, the Exhibit 35, which you -- pursuant
to your request?

MR. BAHR: National life study.

COMM SSI ONER WEFALD: So we don't keep
t hese?

JUDGE WAHL.: No, Comm ssioner, you may
keep them  You may keep them but they won't be
part of the record, except as part of Exhibit 35.

COMM SSI ONER WEFALD: | understand, but

that's just sinmple for me to get rid of them

JUDGE WAHL: Oh, sure. s that all the
identification -- is that identification sufficient,
counsel, Exhibit 35, national life study?

MR. BAHR: | believe that would be
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adequat e.
JUDGE WAHL: And where are we going to get
that fron? |Is that going to conme fromthe
Comm ssion? Has the Comm ssion got that? Or,
M. Bradley, is NSP going to provide the exhibit?
MR. BRADLEY: We can certainly do that.
JUDGE WAHL: All right then. Let's do
that. Then, in effect, that will be a late-filed
exhibit only in the sense that we don't have it
physically present.
MR. BRADLEY: May | ask a housekeepi ng,
Your Honor? We are going to be filing a nunber of

| ate-filed exhibits. How many copi es shoul d we

file?

MS. JEFFCOAT- SACCO: Same nunmber as
before, 11.

MR. BRADLEY: Thank you. Your Honor, |
wi t hdraw my request for Exhibit 35. Killing a tree
for that isn't worth it. |'ve got what | want on

the record.

JUDGE WAHL: M. Bahr, | assume you have
no objection.

MR. BAHR: No obj ecti on.

JUDGE WAHL: All right. You may proceed,

M . Bradley.




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

700
Q (MR. BRADLEY CONTINU NG Wth regard to
t he conbustion turbine proposal to increase the
lives by five years, M. Robinson testified
concerning the type of rehabilitation work that it
will take, be required in order for those plants to

make it that |ong?

A Yes.
Q Do you disagree with any of his testinony?
A No. There's absolutely nothing to do with

t he appropriate depreciation life span for the

exi sting plant. That's future plant.

Q And you did not include any rehabilitation
expenses as an offset to your life extension?

A You don't do that. | mean, that's not how

it's done. The life span is what it is. Regar dl ess
of whether you have to rehabilitate to achieve that
life span. We're not depreciating the
rehabilitation costs. W'I|I|l depreciate those when
t hey are expended. But you don't adjust the life
span based on that rehabilitation. That's future
costs that will be recovered.

Q M. King, you testified in your opening
speech that you thought that the environment here in
North Dakota was more benign towards distribution

t han M nnesot a. Do you recall that?
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A Only for -- in connection with overhead
pl ant .

Q Okay. Have you done a study between the
weat her here in North Dakota and the weather in
sout hern M nnesota where Xcel Energy provides
service?

A Well, you know, that's a good study to do.
What |'ve suggested is an even better study would be
the life expectancy of North Dakota plant. That's
much more to the point. And that's not been done
and it's not my job to do. It's your job, but we
asked for the data so that we could do that study,
because we had the capability, and we got
stonewal |l ed on that data.

Q Several of my clients approached nme and
t ook umbrage with your comrment that North Dakota
doesn't have trees. Have you eval uated whet her or
not the trees in this area are fewer or greater than
they are in the service area where North Dakota --

t han M nnesota?

A | "' m | ooking out the wi ndow, and | don't
see a big forest out there. | see a |ot of prairie,
and when | | anded there in Twin Cities, there are a

lot, a |l ot of trees.

Q So that's your assunption?
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A Oh, come on. Everybody knows that the
annual rainfall -- anybody who has been here knows
t hat the annual rainfall falls off as you go west
fromthe Twin Cities. And so North Dakota will
probably -- well, almst certainly have |less trees
because it takes rain to grow trees.

Q The conpany testified that its vegetation
control would not extend the life of these
facilities because that isn't what causes the
out ages. Do you dispute that testimony?

A Well, they said it wasn't the major cause.
It certainly is a cause. As | said, there's two
reasons for the life extension. And you said
production plant. | think you meant overhead
conductor count. One is the absence of a North
Dakota specific study, and the other is the
differential in the nature of the cli mate,
principally the amount of rainfall or precipitation.

Q So your adjustnment was based on

assunptions --

A. well - -
Q -- about how rainfall affect -- let nme
finish my question, if |I could. Your adjustment is

based upon an assunption without engineering studies

or other studies, but based upon your review of
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rainfall?

A You know, why is it that |'m supposed to
prove the very information that the company is
supposed to prove? What | have said and what ||
say again is this company does not have a North
Dakota specific study of any of its distribution
plant, and it's unreasonable to assunme that North
Dakota experience is the same as M nnesota
experience with regard to overhead conductors. | t
is reasonable to assunme that because of the | ower
| evel s of precipitation in North Dakota, as opposed
to eastern M nnesota, there is somewhat |onger life
to overhead conductors.

Now, you are telling me that |'m supposed

to do the study that you should have done, but I

woul d have done that study if | had the data to do
it with. If I had vintage data for plant in North
Dakota, we would have done the study. It woul d be

on the record right now and we would know for sure
what the differences are between North Dakota and
M nnesota, but to simply assunme that M nnesota is
appropriate for North Dakota is flat-out wrong.

Q And wi t hout that information, we could
just as well assume that it should be five years

shorter?
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A No, | don't believe so. That would be
contrary to common know edge; namely, |ess
precipitation in North Dakota.
Q You're aware, of course, that the

conpany's service territory doesn't include prairie

| and?
A Well, it includes Mnot, which is out in
the prairies, | do believe.
Q M not and suburbs?
A Yes.
MR. BRADLEY: Okay. | have no further
guesti ons.

JUDGE WAHL: Questions fromthe
Comm ssi oners, please.

COMM SSI ONER WEFALD: Well, |I'mjust
| ooki ng through my questions and a | ot of them have
al ready been asked by the two counsel in this case.

JUDGE WAHL: Comm ssioner Wefald speaking.

COMM SSI ONER WEFALD: So | do not have a
| ot of remaining questions on this. It's been a
very interesting exchange between counsel and the
wi t ness.

EXAM NATI ON

BY COMM SSI ONER WEFALD:

Q | do have one iteml1'd like to clarify.
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Early in M. King's testimony -- early in M. King's
testinony he said -- the attorney had asked himif
he agreed with Betsy Engel king on a specific matter
and | heard himsay | agree with everything Betsy
Engel ki ng sai d.

Did you mean that you agreed with all of
her testimony or only on that specific topic?

A Yeah. The question went to the advantages
of a broader system integrated system and she
argued at some length at the end of her testinony,

t he whole | ast few pages, about the advantages of an
integrated system | agree with everything she said
in that section, but | don't agree with everything
el se she said, no.

Q Thank you for clarifying that. On the --
on -- give nme a nonment because | wasn't certain when
counsel would be done with his questioning to review
my notes here.

It's always hel pful for the Comm ssion to
have a list of the -- a list of the specific items
t hat your -- that staff is recommendi ng adj ustments
to the case and put those in a list.

A Well, actually, the list is at the back of
M. Majoros' testinmony.

Q Yes, but there were dollar differences
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t hen between NSP's one witness came in and said the
doll ar differences between and | know t hat
M. Majoros agreed with those and said that now the
cost increases. There's a cost increase of |ike
$4.7 instead of a cost --

A In other words, you'd like M. Majoros to
item ze the individual adjustments as revised by
Ms. Heuer?

Q That's correct.

MR. BAHR: Comm ssioner Wefald, | would
submt that in our concluding |egal documents, our
briefs, we would attach a list with any changes or
modi fi cati ons based upon what's occurred in this
proceedi ng.

COMM SSI ONER WEFALD: Thank you. That
woul d be very helpful. That would be very hel pful.
And at this time, | have no further questions.

JUDGE WAHL: Comm ssioner Cl ark.

COMM SSI ONER CLARK: | do have a few.

EXAM NATI ON
BY COWMM SSI ONER CLARK:

Q Could -- how do you adjust for the fact or
do you adjust for the fact at all that Xcel doesn't
have a North Dakota specific depreciation study,

especially with regard to the North Dakota specific
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pl ant, the transm ssion and distribution facilities?
Do you make any adjustnment from a doll ar standpoint,
or is it just a matter of recomendi ng that they
file one?

A Well, the only adjustment |'ve made is the
one we just debated, which is to the overhead
conductors account, and that's only because that is
clearly the one that nmost likely is different in
Nort h Dakota as opposed to M nnesot a. But asi de
fromthat, | don't have a basis for adjusting any of
t he other accounts, even though |I'm confident that a
North Dakota specific study would obtain different
results. Now, in some cases it may be shorter l|ives
t han the company assumed or in others | onger. I
can't say.

Q Di d advocacy staff debate at all sinmply
recommendi ng that the Conm ssion return the rate
case pending an updated depreciation study? | mean,

it is a huge issue.

A Oh, it's a big issue and that certainly is
an option the Conmm ssion could adopt. | woul d put
into that that we should -- it should develop its

production plant depreciation rates based on the
revised rates that | have suggested. W were able

only to make -- as you'll see in ny exhibit -- oh,
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dear. It's Exhibit No. CWK-4, | believe -- anyway,
my adjustnments were necessarily very, very rough
because we didn't have any refined data on the test
year plant and the depreciation.

Q Did you have an ability to take a |ook at
the pre- MERP | RP?

A No, | haven't. And that's an issue
because we should have or would have exam ned that
pre-1 RP MERP and we woul d have requested it fromthe
company. | gather that staff has it in any case,
but the -- | didn't know until the rebuttal was
filed a week ago, what, Friday that the company was
going to take issue with what | thought was his own
witness's testinmony.

COMM SSI ONER CLARK: | s there going to be

an ability -- and | can make the request or maybe
per haps one of the parties can -- to have -- |
assume we just need to take notice of our own filing

because those are all filed in front of our
Comm ssi on.

MR. BAHR: And it is my understanding that
t hese documents are filed with the Comm ssion and
"' m assum ng, but would Iike counsel to confirmthat
it can be referred to in the record.

MS. HERTZLER: We have no objection to
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taki ng notice of that and referring to it in the
record.

COWM SSI ONER CLARK: So I'Il ask Judge
Wahl! . Do we need to take any -- identify the
particular IRP that we're tal king about, or are they
all open for us to |ook at?

JUDGE WAHL: No. They're all avail able
and the Comm ssion can take official notice of its
filings.

COWMM SSI ONER CLARK: Do we need to do that
now or just --

JUDGE WAHL: No. The problem with the
ot her documents that we have pending is that they
weren't identified.

COMM SSI ONER CLARK: Okay.

Q ( COMM SSI ONER CLARK CONTI NUING) M. King,
did you look at all into the issue that the
Comm ssion explored yesterday or the day before, |
can't remenmber, with one of the Xcel w tnesses
regardi ng projected growth in North Dakota and what
i mpact that could have on the rate request?

A. You know, we |ooked at that, but | nmnust
say we didn't give it a very refined analysis. It's
very hard to argue with the conpany's forecast

studi es, and what | think we should have | ooked at
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more carefully is the relationship of North Dakota
growth to M nnesota growth

Q Did you find that finding a little odd --

A Yeah, its counterintuitive because ny
i mpression is that M nnesota, certainly the Twin
Cities area, is growing faster than North Dakot a,
al though the part of North Dakota that's growing is
the part that's served by this company.

Q Would you talk a little bit -- I think it
was M. WAt son. | had asked him about the
depreci ation study and said, you know, if you' ve got
an accurate depreciation study, shouldn't the method
that they're using for the net salvage, the cost of
sal vage be accurate? 1In other words, does it really
matter? Could you address that?

A Well, it's always a rough estimate as
conmpani es typically cal cul ate cost of renoval and
because it's based on historical relationships
bet ween experienced removal costs and experienced
retirements. This is true of the T&D pl ant. It's
not -- transm ssion and distribution plant, not of
t he production plant. But that is a very poor basis
for forecasting future removal costs, because it's
conparing dollars that are significantly different

in val ue. lt's a fraction with the denom nat or
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being the removal cost -- I'msorry. The numerator
being the removal cost, the denom nator being the
retired plant. Well, the numerator is expressed in
recent dollars because they've only been taking --
it reflects usually the plant taking down the | ast
five years. The denom nator can be plant that was
placed -- it's the original cost of plant that has
been retired and it could be 50, 75 years old. As a
consequence, you're getting old, very val uable
dol I ars and, therefore, very few dollars in the
denom nat or, and new not very valuable dollars and,

t herefore, many of themin the numerator and you get
an overstated fraction.

Q Okay. So the $300-some mllion bal ance
that you're tal king about, is the primary driver
behind that the time value of nmoney as opposed to --

A That's right. 1t's the differential of
t he value of noney in that fraction.

Q Okay. There was a statement that

Ms. Engel ki ng made, and | was wondering if you had a

reaction to it or how you interpreted it. And it
was related to, |I think the word she used was
"flexibility," that there was a -- through normal

processes of procuring new plants and additions and

things Iike that, there had been established a
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fairly rigorous RFP process, procurement process,
but | think it was related to MERP, but because of
MERP there was flexibility that was able to be
gained in, | think, specifically rehabilitating the
Hi gh Bridge plant and obtaining some turbines at a
| ower cost than they m ght have otherwi se incurred.

Coul d you reflect on that?

A What | heard is that they get the
flexibility in the MERP project to self-build and,

t herefore, not have to go out on bids. That's what
| heard. Now, there may be additional flexibility
she was tal king about and that is not a very good
flexibility because it permts the conpany to
capture construction projects and incorporate that
into its rate base. The concept of conpetitive

bi dding is that the conmpany puts in a bid itself for
a self-build option and that's one of the
alternatives that has to be considered in the
competitive bidding process.

Q So some of the conpetitive bidding was
forfeited in this particular case because they got
automatic recovery through the rider?

A Yeah. My understanding is that they were
able to avoid conpetitive bidding for both the w nd

and the power plants, but, again, this is based on
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wr ong.
COMM SSI ONER CLARK: Okay. That's all
|'ve got right now. Thanks.
JUDGE WAHL: Comm ssioner Cramer.
COMM SSI ONER CRAMER: Thanks.
EXAM NATI ON
BY COMM SSI ONER CRAMER:
Q Comm ssioner Clark asked two real specifi
guestions that | was going to ask and | appreciate,

especially related to this pre-MERP I RP and the

713
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dramati c change to the post-MERP IRP. So |'m going

to try to utilize your expertise and your experience

to ask a couple maybe broader questions.

One is in your rate design discussion,
especially you're advocating for ultimtely
separating delivery charge from the volunme charge,
delivery cost from volume charge, that decoupling -

A Ri ght .

Q -- and the advantage -- one of the
advant ages you tal ked about was the bal anci ng of
monthly bills throughout the seasons or the year.

Is there an additional value to how it
woul d i ncent the conpany to inmplement nore

conservation measures? Does it send better price
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signal s?

A Oh, yeah, | think that's always an
advant age of making sure that the charges reflect
t he underlying costs and the drivers of those costs,
because you don't want fixed costs covered by
volumetric rates, because then there is every
incentive for the company to maxi m ze volume and
m nim ze conservation. \When its fixed costs are
recovered in fixed rates, then the conmpany is
indifferent to conservation because it doesn't
suffer a penalty if customers cut back.

Q | want to pick your expertise a little bit
with regard to this issue of M nnesota driven costs
in North Dakota -- being expected to be paid for by
Nort h Dakota ratepayers.

If M nnesota public officials, whether

t hey be el ected or appointed by elected officials,

represent the will of the people and they inpose

t hese additional costs, | assume wllingly, why

woul dn't they also be willing to pay all of thent
A Well, | think they should be. You know,

repeatedly in cross-exam nation we hear the conpany
saying, well, if we didn't pay the -- oh, the
contributions to the renewable fund, for example,

why we'd have to close Prairie |Island because we
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woul dn't be meeting our M nnesota requirenent.
Well, sure, fine, pay the thing and charge it to
M nnesota because it's a M nnesota cost. | think
that's true of all these disallowances |'ve
proposed. They're M nnesota costs and | do believe
the M nnesota Comm ssion ought to be absorbing those
costs and charging the M nnesota ratepayers.

Q Well, in your opinion, would M nnesotans
resist that?

A You know, | don't think that if this
company went to the M nnesota PUC and said that the
North Dakota Public Service Comm ssion has found
t hat these are M nnesota-only costs, that the
M nnesota Public Utility Conmm ssion would say, well,
| don't agree with the North Dakota Public Service
Comm ssion and you guys go back to North Dakota and
try and get that nmoney. | just don't see that Kkind
of relationship between you and the PUC, but then
you guys know better than |I how you get along with
t hose fol ks.

Q You heard some questioning and answers of
Xcel witnesses regarding not the weather climte,
but the regulatory climate in comparison between the
two states with regard to building transm ssion and

pl ant, and nmy assessment of the answers went from --
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| et me back up.

| was trying to get to the point is it
easier, Is it faster and consequently | ess expensive
to build transm ssion in North Dakota than it is in
M nnesota? That's a paraphrase of my question. The
paraphrase of the answers went from somewhere
bet ween el usive to vague.

I n your experience in multiple states, do
you think or do you have any experience to support
that it is, in fact, maybe much easier to do
busi ness in North Dakota, to build whether the
regul atory climte and/ or costs associated in North
Dakota than in M nnesota?

A Well, my experience is that resistance to
particularly transm ssion lines, that's the big
t ough one --

Q Yes.

A -- is a function of popul ation density.
The more people you have per square mle the nore
resi stance you're going to get to putting a
transm ssion |line through that square mle. And the
fact is that M nnesota is more popul ati on density,
at | east southern M nnesota, than North Dakot a.
Once you get out of Fargo and, you know, the Red

Ri ver Vall ey.
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Q Sur e.

A So | would suspect that you get a |lot |ess
resistance to transm ssion lines in North Dakota
t han you do in M nnesot a.

Q Are you famliar with any transm ssion
projects in M nnesota that have been pending before
regul ators for one, two, three or nore years?

A |"m not familiar, but | wouldn't be
surprised if there are such. | mean, that's typica
in urbanized states.

Q Do you have any concern about the grow ng
dependence on natural gas for generating electricity
for things other than rarely used peak plants?

A Yeah, because natural gas fluctuates in
both availability and, consequently, price.

Addi tionally, natural gas is dependent upon

pi pelines and the pipelines can be bottlenecks. As
electric utilities use nore natural gas, clearly
they put a strain on pipeline capacity and the
practice in most regulatory comm ssions is to give
first priority to heating gas; in other words,
recogni zing that heating gas is a basic necessity of
life. And generating electricity is a basic
necessity of life, but most electric utilities have

enough flexibility that if push comes to shove, they
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can cut back on natural gas use and bring up
somet hi ng el se, usually coal

Q Well, do you see the conversion of a
couple of coal plants in the NSP systemto natura
gas as a concern in this regard?

A Well, certainly that is -- incrementally
adds to that problem  You know, the flipside, as
t he conmpany says is, oh, well, these things are nore
fl exi bl e because you can start them up and cl ose
t hem down real quickly. Coal plants, that's nore
difficult because you simply can't fire up a coa
plant in the matter of an hour or two.

Q Okay. | just want to pursue one other
line of information. And | asked M. Majoros this
guesti on yesterday and he deferred to you and maybe
you can help me a little bit.

What are the advantages to a conpany |ike
NSP requesting or entering into building a transfer
relationship with large wi nd devel opers as opposed
to long-term purchase power agreements and what
m ght be di sadvantages to ratepayers?

A Well, the advantage to NSP of owning as
opposed to buying is that owning they make noney on.
It goes into rate base. | f they buy, it goes

dol l ar-for-dollar right through the FCA and they
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don't make a red cent on it. So right off the bat
there's incentive for the company to own.

Now, having said that, there are also sone
of fsetting benefits in theory to ratepayers. And
that is, that NSP can capture the -- particularly
for wind, the tax credits and flow them through to
rat epayers. They will not get the tax credits from
wi nd devel opers, because the wi nd devel oper will
keep them and not flow them through in the price of
their -- in reducing the price of their power. That
maybe is one of the biggest advantages of the self-
build option.

If the conpany wants to keep that
self-build or that tax credit, then we've got
anot her problem And some conpani es argue that
they're entitled to absorb the tax credit because it
is, after all, intended to foster the devel opment of
wi nd. And that would cancel that out, but that's
specul ative. | don't know whether the conpany pl ans
to flow through the tax benefit of Grand Meadows or
not .

Q I n your opinion, is there more risk and is
it worth it, if there is, to ratepayers in the
ownershi p model versus the PPA nodel ?

A Well, there probably -- arguably nore risk
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in the PPA nodel because the conpany doesn't control
the resource and it's possible that the wi nd
devel oper could peddle it to somebody else, but it's
unli kely, particularly given that the wi nd devel oper
is hooked up to the NSP system and it's rather hard
to bypass that. So | don't think that's a big
difference in -- risk is a big differential.

COMM SSI ONER CRAMER: | have not hing
further.

JUDGE WAHL: Comm ssioner Cl ark.

FURTHER EXAM NATI ON
BY COMM SSI ONER CLARK:
Q | just have a couple followups after
Comm ssi oner Cramer.

Wth regard to this issue of w nd
ownership versus purchasing wi nd through PPA's,
would it make sense for this Comm ssion to perhaps
have -- present a posture to utility conpanies in
general and maybe Xcel here, that it would be
appropriate to have a m x of both PPA and ownership,
recogni zing that there are costs and benefits to
each side of it?

A Well, | think that's not a bad policy to
adopt. Always you want to diversify, as much as you

can, your resources, and that's a form of resource
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di versification

Q And then just so | understand -- so that
"' m follow ng your discussion of wind and the
Buffal o Ridge and the Grand Meadow -- Grand Meadow?

A Yeah.

Q -- project, your argument that you're
forwarding is that M nnesota early on adopted a
mandate for wind and that it be mandated that it go
in Mnnesota?

A Ri ght .

Q And because of that mandate, really the
only place that they could turn was Buffalo Ridge
because it's the only --

A Only good resource.

Q Right. Only field of any size that has an
acceptable resource, so that's where the initial
i nvest ment went, but that's not really at stake in
this rate case, but what is, is the domno effect
t hat that early mandate created, which was because
t he mandate basically said you're going to go to
Buffalo Ridge, that's where the transm ssion was
devel oped and, therefore, that's where all of Xcel's
subsequent devel opment of wi nd has taken place?

A That's correct.

Q Okay. And the concern that this raises
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for you is that because of that, it's precluded any
real conpetitive | ook at where the best w nd

resource would be if you | ooked at the system as a

whol e?
A That's correct.
Q Okay. Given that so many other utility

conmpanies in the region have invested | arge anounts
into wi nd power in North Dakota, does that -- does
it seemeither odd to you that Xcel hasn't invested
more in North Dakota wi nd, or does that really
establish a prima facie case that maybe what
happened in M nnesota really did skew things in
favor of themto the exclusion of North Dakota w nd?
A Well, it certainly suggests that what
happened in M nnesota skewed toward M nnesota and
away from North Dakota. The big problemis we don't
know, and the reason we don't know is there never
was a conpetitive conparison of the alternative.
And t hat being the case, | don't think this
Comm ssion should automatically accept the full cost
of this Grand Meadows operation and the transm ssion
cost to hook up M nnesota because it hasn't been
proven to be the best cost, |east cost opportunity.
And that's a burden the conmpany has to bear and they

have not borne it.
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COMM SSI ONER CLARK: Okay. Thanks.
That's all |'ve got.
JUDGE WAHL: Comm ssioner Wefald.
COMM SSI ONER WEFALD: Yes.
FURTHER EXAM NATI ON
BY COMM SSI ONER WEFALD:

Q El i zabet h Engel king, in her testinony --

El i zabet h Engel king, in her testimny, said that if
t he Comm ssion disallowed 25 percent of the cost for
transm ssion and the Prairie Meadow - -

A. Grand Meadow.

Q -- Grand Meadow wind farm that, then,
those facilities would need to be replaced at cost
to North Dakota ratepayers. | s that your intention?

A. Yeah, that's ridiculous. |'m not
proposing that Grand Meadows not produce its power.
What |'m saying is that we don't know that Grand
Meadows is the cheapest wind resource for this
company. And, as a consequence, we shouldn't be
sinply rolling over and paying the full price for
Grand Meadows. We should be getting some sort of
di scount for the fact that we very well may be and
probably are paying a suboptiml -- paying for a
suboptimal facility.

COMM SSI ONER WEFALD: Thank you.
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JUDGE WAHL: Anything further fromthe
Comm ssion? Why don't we take a very brief recess,
| think. Boy, can we do five mnutes? Let's do
five mnutes just to stretch our |egs and go right
back to work

(Recess was taken.)

JUDGE WAHL: All right. W are back on
the record.

M. Bahr, foll owup?

MR. BAHR: Yes. Thank you, Your Honor.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. BAHR:

Q First of all, M. King, during the
gquesti oni ng about remaining-life depreciation, you
used the word "refund" a couple of times.

Do you remember that?

A Yes.

Q Woul d that word have been an accurate
description of what you're referring to?

A No. No. That's not what happens. I f you
overdepreciate in remaining-life depreciation, it
means that your reserve is overstated and in
remai ning-life depreciation you conpute the
depreciation rate by taking the accrued depreciation

reserve, which now we've determ ned i s overst at ed,
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and you reduce the amount to be depreciated by
taking the original cost, subtracting that reserve
and then you get the unrecovered cost. Now, i f
you've been overdepreciating, that unrecovered cost
is somewhat smaller. As a consequence, the
depreciation rate is somewhat |ower than it would be
under whole-life rates and that is then reflected in
t he going-forward depreciation rates which are
adjusted to recogni ze the fact that you have in the
past overdepreciated. As far as | know, NSP does
not do that and given that they have been over-
depreciating all of their production plants, that is
a flat-out error in their methodol ogy.

Q During the questioning you were also asked
a number of questions about Exhibit 34, M. Majoros'
singl e-asset exanpl e?

A Yes.

Q Woul d you agree that M. Majoros would be
the better one to respond to questions?

A | think so. He disagrees with me. He was
shaking his head and if | have msinterpreted it, |
woul d really Iike to have him explain why.

MR. BAHR: Thank you. No further
guesti ons.

JUDGE WAHL: M . Bradley.
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MR. BRADLEY: Thank you, Your Honor.
RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. BRADLEY:
Q You just testified that the conmpany has

overdepreciated its what?

A It's production plants.
Q By how much?
A | don't know. |'d have to calculate that,

and | would have if | had the data, but I didn't get
it.

Q So you don't know if they've over-
depreci ated?

A | do, yes, because any tinme you extend the
life of a production plant, it means that your past
accrual s have been overstated because they were
based on a shorter life than the one you're now
using, so you have in the past overdepreciated that
pl ant .

Q And as we go forward, if you extend the
life, you recover on a remaining-life basis the new
expense to extend that life, divided by whatever
hasn't yet been depreciated, plus whatever hasn't
been depreciated by the nunber of years left?

A. Well, that's how it should be done. |I'm

not certain that's how the conmpany does it.
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Q At which point, then, to the extent that
t he conpany has, quote, overrecovered, that would
reflect in a reduction in cost for future repairs?

A |f the conpany uses the remaining-life
procedure, what you say is accurate. | f the company
does not, what you say is not true.

Q And if we were to refund the so-called
overcol |l ected amounts, then they would just have to
be collected again in the future?

A No. No. No. You don't refund them
What you do is adjust -- that was an unfortunate
word and it was flat-out wrong. You adj ust down the
depreciation rate to reflect the fact that you' ve
al ready overrecovered past depreciation accruals.

Q By the end, though, we would need to
recover the entire asset cost, both original and as
extended?

A |f you do it right, you will, of course,
but with remaining-life depreciation, that's exactly
what happens.

Q Commi ssi oner Clark asked whether the
advocacy staff had considered returning this case
due to the fact that this conpany had not filed an
i ndependent North Dakota depreciation study.

Do you recall that question?




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

728

A Yes.
Q Are you aware that the past Conmm ssion
practice has been to accept the filings and results

of the M nnesota processes?

A Well, that's true, but we now find out
that the M nnesota processes are very, very, very
weak and wrong and, as a consequence, it's a good
poi nt that the conpany has not proved its case
because it has not devel oped North Dakota specific
depreciation rates, also hasn't devel oped a
production plan that reflects the statutory
requi rements of M nnesota -- | mean of North Dakot a
and not M nnesot a.

Q Is the conpany entitled to rely on
regul atory practices and principles?

A Well, that's a |legal question that you and
M. Bahr can debate.

Q Has this Comm ssion ever requested a
stand- al one depreciation study for North Dakota?

A | can't say. It certainly did in this
case and it was turned down.

Q And if this Conm ssion were to order the
conpany to do one in a future case, wouldn't you
assunme the conpany would do that?

A. | think it should do it in this case, but,
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certainly, | would think it appropriate in all
future cases.

Q And you had a question concerni ng whet her
you had reviewed Ms. Marks' forecasting and whet her
you could explain Ms. Marks' conclusion that there
was a growth in North Dakota that's greater than the
growth in M nnesot a. Do you recall that?

A Yes.

Q To the extent that Ms. Marks over-
forecasted growth, doesn't that result in a
reduction in the revenue requirenent?

A ' m sorry. Over-forecasted growth? No,
it results in an increase in the revenue requirenment
because it results in increase in allocation of
capacity costs to North Dakota that if it doesn't
happen in 2008 is going to be an over-allocation.

Q Well, there would be a change in the
all ocation between the two states to the extent that
we were doing this based on sales, but, in fact,
we'd al so have the revenue associated with that
increase in sales as an offset to the revenue
requi rement ?

A Yeah, and | don't know what the effect of
her over-forecast is. It could be nore revenue. | t

could be nmore cost, but we don't know. We don''t
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know what the effect is and if that's an infirmty
in the case, why that is another reason to
reconsi der it.

Q If the M nnesota Comm ssion were to accept
your recomendati on and agree to pay for the
additional 60 megawatts at King, the additional 247
megawatts at Hi gh Bridge and 25 percent of the w nd,
don't you think the M nnesota Comm ssion woul d be
entitled to say we are entitled to the full benefit,
t hen, of those additional capacities and energy?

A No. No. They'd have to say --
acknowl edge that these are a result of M nnesota
| egi sl ati on and not necessarily the independent
assessnment of capacity requirements. Now, |'ve said
over and over again and I'll say it once nore, to
t he extent that that capacity is required for the
integrated system to meet the integrated system
load, it is admssible in North Dakota. To the
extent it is not required, but is instead incurred
simply because the M nnesota statute requires it to
be incurred or the M nnesota plan requires it to be
incurred, then it should be assigned to M nnesota.
That's the test that needs to be made.

Q Now, you had a discussion concerning

owni ng versus PPA's for wi nd?




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

731

A Yes.

Q And one of the advantages of owning a
facility is you get to maintain it and operate it;
is that correct?

A Well, that's an advantage, but it's not
straight, cut-and-dried, because, obviously, the
owner, whoever he is, is going to have that
responsibility and presumably if he wants to make
any noney, he's going to make sure the thing works.

Q You stated that the facilities would be,

quote, hooked up to the NSP system Do you recal

t hat ?

A Ri ght .

Q It's not going to be hooked up to the NSP
system It's going to be hooked up to the

transm ssion network, isn't it?

A Well, it's transm ssion that goes to the
Twin Cities. Yes, a customer could buy through and
acquire that wi nd power anywhere in the M SO area,
but we get into transm ssion costs and it gets to be
expensive to do so.

Q M. King, are you aware that the financial
institutes that rate the companies for bond-rating
purposes treat PPA's as a portion -- a portion of

PPA' s as debt ?
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A Well, they do if it's a long-term PPA
comm tment, yes.

Q So to the extent that the Conm ssion buys
20 years, for example, of a wind project, the
financial comunity will treat that as -- a
percent age of that as debt?

A | suspect so, yes.

Q And to the extent that we were to do only
PPA"s, we could find ourselves in a situation where
we are carrying too nmuch debt conpared to our
equity?

A That's possi bl e.

MR. BRADLEY: | have no further questions.

JUDGE WAHL: Any followup by the
Comm ssion? M. Bahr, any foll owup?

MR. BAHR: No, Your Honor.

JUDGE WAHL: All right. Very good. Thank
you very much, M. King.

THE W TNESS: Thank you. Thank you,
Conmi ssi oners.

COMM SSI ONER CRAMER: Thank you.

COMM SSI ONER CLARK: Thank you.

JUDGE WAHL: M. Bahr.

MR. BAHR: | would like to recall M ke

Maj or os.
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THE W TNESS: Hel | o agai n.

JUDGE WAHL.: M. Majoros, you understand,
of course, that your testimony continues under oath
and subject to the penalties of perjury?

THE W TNESS: Yes, | do, and | take that
very seriously.

JUDGE WAHL: M. Bahr.

M CHAEL J. MAJOROS, JR.,
havi ng been previously sworn, was exam ned and
testified as follows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. BAHR:
Q M. Majoros, you were present during
M. King's testimny?
A. Yes.
Q And you heard the questions and his
responses regardi ng Exhibit 34?
A. Yes.
Q Do you agree with all of his responses?
A | think M. King -- no. | know M. King
made a few m stakes. | don't know how you're going
to rule, but I want you to rule based on the truth.
So I'"'m going to explain that. Now, what | need is a
copy of my chart.
Q | will bring you Exhibit 34.




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

734

A No. 1, on this chart line C-D equals line
A- B. They both recover the correct amount. No. 2,
a single-asset exanple is the best way to
denonstrate and understand the issue we're talKking
about . Mul ti-asset exanples merely disguise this
issue that's demonstrated right here. This is the
core issue. That's why -- |'ve been doing this a
long time and that's -- | used to do nulti-asset,
but | could never explain it. And that's why |I'm
doi ng a single-asset exanple. | think it's very
cl ear. It's the best way to explain the issue.

Under the use of present value, you do not

underaccrue. That is because we assume matching
and, furthermore, from a factual standpoint, plant
continues to grow so the probability is that you'l
overaccrue, even using the present-val ue approach.
The proof is that we do it all the time for nuclear
decomm ssi oning costs. \What we're talking about
here is no different. That $342 mllion is driven
by front-loading line A-B and it is compounded by
pl ant growth. So, finally, nobody here is proposing
any underaccrual. We're proposing to discontinue
NSP' s overaccrual .

Q M. Majoros, M. Bradley asked M. King

about would line C-D ever reach the |level of |line




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

735
A- B. Do you recall that?

A Yes.

Q And in your graph the end of line C-Dis
clearly above line A-B; correct?

A Yes.

Q And so is the amount at the end near D
hi gher than the amount that would be under their
approach under line A-B?

A Yes. And that's why |'ve said that's an
undercharge to future ratepayers, but an overcharge
to current ratepayers.

Q And as | believe you discussed yesterday,
that in actual dollars throughout C through D is the
same?

A Absolutely. In fact, | have an exanple
back in the office that proves that, that there's no
guestion about that. A-B equals C-D.

Q And that exanple you're referring to, does
t hat actually use, you know, actual figures to
denonstrate these points?

A Yes, it does.

Q | s that something you believe would be
beneficial for the Comm ssion to see?

A Yes, | think the Conmm ssion should see

t hat .




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

736

Q But you don't have that currently?

A. No, | don't.

Q | s that something, if requested, you would
be willing to file as a |ate exhibit?

A. Yes, | woul d.

MR. BRADLEY: I
| ate exhibit.
t he stand.

MR. BAHR: Okay. No

JUDGE WAHL: M.

BY MR. BRADLEY:
Q First of all,

i ndicate that the conmpany does

that A-B equals C-D. We're in
A | know.
Q And |'m pl eased that

we have that. And all | would

we coul d develop a very sinple
Comm ssion gets a single-asset

A Okay. That
Q Yes. And |
wi |l

M. King and | attenpt to

your assi stance.

A Okay. | m ght ask,

woul d obj ect

is a single-asset

attenpted to do that

t hen,

to it as a

We can try to create one with him on

addi ti onal questions.

Br adl ey.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

M. Majoros, I'd like to

not di sagree with you
absol ute agreenent.
we at | east -- that
like to do is see if
compari son so the
concept.

concept.

t hrough
do it

with you with

if you agree
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that A-B equals C-D, do you also agree with the

concept denmonstrated by this exhibit?

Q Well, I'mnot sure what you mean by the
concept. | agree with our concept.

A Well, you understand that A-B is a
straight |ine because you brought that up yesterday.

Q Yes.

A And t hat what we're proposing is C-D,

which is matching inflation over the |life of the
asset .

Q Well, | agree that it is a deflated cost
that inflates with time.

A Ri ght. And you understand that the
decomm ssioning studies that you filed and we
di scussed yesterday are done in historical dollars
probably before 2008 and then you nmove them up as
inflation occurs, just as |'m proposi ng here.

Q | don't know exactly what we do for those.

A Well, take that for granted. Well, you

agreed with me that was something to check.

Q Let's see if we can do a quick exanple.
A Okay.
Q Let's assume $100 retirement projected --

future projected $100 retirement.

A. Retirement or cost of removal ?
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Q Cost of renoval .

A Okay. So we're going to take this and we
are going to say this is $100 out here. Okay.

Q And let's assume a 10-year life. |'m
trying to do all the math as easy as | can.

A All right.

Q So the straight |ine would be $10?

A That's correct.

Q | f we wanted to determ ne what that $100
was in current costs, we would have to deflate that
$100 to a current cost?

A | used the phrase "discount back to its
present val ue."

Q |'m not trying to argue the words. We
woul d di scount it?

A Yeah.

Q And we woul d discount it by whatever rate
we had used to, in fact, future -- develop the
future cost, inflate for the future cost?

A Well, what you're talking about, the way
you're phrasing this exanple, is what he's assum ng
is he started with the present value and then
inflated it to $100, so whatever inflation rate you
used to get it to the $100, you don't even have to

di scount it because you already know what the
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present value is. That's the nunber you're
inflating.

Q But I'mtrying to make this a little
broader than just that.

A | like to stick to single-asset exanples.
| know you want to make it broader.

Q |'m not trying to make it broader. | want
a single asset.

A Okay.

Q So would you accept it would be reasonable
for purposes of our discussion to use a 5 percent
di scount ?

A Yes, | have no objection.

Q Okay. And if we were to discount that
$100 by 5 percent over 10 years, and you can take
the time to check it or whatever you want, | came up
with $64.507

A Okay.

Q And that would be line C, point C;

correct?

A That's correct.

Q Al'l right. So we would collect that
over -- we would say, but that's going to be

coll ected over 10 years so we would collect $6.45

rat her than -- at that point?




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

740
A At that point a depreciation rate would be
set to collect $6.45 in year one, yes.
Q Yes. So we compare the $6.45 to the $10

under the two met hodol ogi es?

A. That's correct.

Q Now, we want to go five years out in the
future?

A. M+ hmm

Q Woul d we now take that $100 and di scount

that five years at 5 percent per year?

A. Yes.

Q And subject to check again, would you
accept that that's $78.35?

A 78 -- because what you're talking about,

guess, is right around the intersection of these two

lines?
Q Probably close. | don't know.
A So you're saying that point is $78.

don't know why it's not half.

Woul d we divide that by five years?

Q You are welcone to --

A. No. No. Man. 78 what?
Q $78. 35.

A Okay.

Q

A.

Yes.
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Q So if we divide the 78.35, we would get
$15.67?

A "Il accept that.

Q Okay. Wuld we | ook backwards and try to
determ ne what we hadn't collected under the delta
bet ween the A-B line and the C-D |line, or would we
just stop at the $15.67?

A In effect what we're really going to do,
shoul d do, is that the difference between the $64.50
and the next year, let's assume in the next year,
year nine it is 60. Okay?

Q It would be higher than 60.

A All right. Okay. So let's say it's 70.

Q 1.5 percent times 64.

A What ever. The difference between those
two nunbers is that -- is the depreciation expense
for that period. So there's no attempt -- | mean,

you're bringing up a | ot of smoke to disguise the

fact that this is the core issue.

Q Subj ect to check, nmy $64.50 became $67.72?
A Ri ght .

Q Okay. That was the increase in one year?
A Ri ght .

Q If we actually increase rates every year,

we keep up with it, right, if we actually increase
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rates?
A Depreci ation rates?
Q Yeah.
A Yeah.
Q Yeah. Do we have a need for any tracker?
A No.
MR. BRADLEY: | have no further questions.

JUDGE WAHL: Any questions fromthe
Conm ssioners?
COMM SSI ONER WEFALD: Yes.
JUDGE WAHL: Comm ssioner Wefald.
EXAM NATI ON
BY COMM SSI ONER WEFALD:

Q So point C starts at $64.507?

A. Yes.

Q And in year one you pay $6.45?

A Ri ght .

Q But by year six you're paying $15.75?

A Yes. But -- okay.

Q Okay. And so in the early years you pay
| ess?

A That's right.
Q And as you get closer to the time that the
deconmm ssi oni ng needs to occur --

A Ri ght .
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Q -- ratepayers pay a higher -- a higher
decomm ssi oni ng cost?

A Well, they pay -- yes.

Q Yes. And so that is so that when you get
to that time when the actual decomm ssioning occurs,
t hat you have that $100?

A. That's correct.

Q And so what your method does is, is to try
to match that the people who are closest to the tinme

of decomm ssioning pay nore of the cost?

A That's the effect. But ny goal, ny goal
is to -- if we all agree that inflation is a period
expense --

Q Yes.

A -- and | think we all do, my goal is to

mat ch that expense to the periods it is incurred.

Q Okay. Thank you.

A. Not to front-load future inflation to
t oday.
Q Yes.

A Which is what the conpany does.

Q Al'l right. If the -- now | need to go on
to alittle broader question. I n your m nd, then,
woul d the Comm ssion -- you laid out this method
of -- it's so hard for me to talk about this because
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| don't talk about it on a daily basis of handling

decomm ssi oni ng expenses.

A M- hmm

Q And help me now, just because it's been a
| ong two and a half days. If we were to adopt this
-- do you call it accrual accounting?

A Yes.

Q Accrual accounting for these

decomm ssioning costs, does it relate again to
specific items in the case or is it a concept that
we woul d be adopting as a comm ssion to relate to
all --

A It's a concept that you would adopt and it
is built into M. King's depreciation rate
recommendati ons.

COMM SSI ONER WEFALD: Okay. Thank you.
Al'l right.

JUDGE WAHL: Any further questions from
t he Comm ssion? Comm ssioner Clark.

COWM SSI ONER WEFALD: Jerry has a
gquesti on.

JUDGE WAHL: Oh, I'm sorry.

EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. LEIN:

Q I'mleft with a question on this exanple
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t hat we just devel oped. When we got to year 5, we
were | ooking at $15. Did we forget to subtract off
t he accumul ated depreciation fromyears 1 through 5?

A Well, presumably we've collected the
correct anmount each year so it's not a remaining-
life calculation. It is how nmuch inflation is going
to occur that year and then the next year it's nore
and the next year it's nore.

Q It seems as if at year 5 the $78 nunber is
too high because we woul d have had to subtract off
all of the depreciation that we paid through years 1
t hrough 5 and then spread that rest, that difference
over these five years?

A No. What | would ask is -- | can even
have it e-mailed today, is to have that exanple that

| ve done to denonstrate precisely how this works

and that they come out -- the two |lines are the
same. That's -- |1 don't know. | didn't check
M. Bradley's $78 or his $15. | accepted it. But

as | said, nobody is proposing any mechani sm
designed to underaccrue or take any noney,

|l egiti mte money away from the conpany. Nobody.
We're trying to get the correct recognition of

future inflation.
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FURTHER EXAM NATI ON

Q What M. Lein, | think, is wondering about
is whether the numbers before year 5 plus the
numbers after year 5 equal more than $100?

A No, they don't.

They don't. Okay.

Q
A They add up to exactly $100.
Q

Okay. And so --
COMM SSI ONER WEFALD:
COMM SSI ONER CRAMER:

t hat .

JUDGE WAHL:

BY COMM SSI ONER CRAMER:

Comm ssi oner

Thank you
If | could continue
Cr amer .

EXAM NATI ON

Q | think at some point, though, the
intersection would be the same. | mean, it should
be at some point $50 for both lines?

A It m ght be. Right there.

Q | mean, it seens like -- to me it seens
like it ought to be?

A That's what | was thinking. | guess
woul d assume. | never | ooked at where that point
woul d be, but | thought it would be at 50 percent

t hrough the life, you know, and,

yes, at one instant
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in time the two nunbers will be the same.

MR. LEIN: And perhaps that's what woul d
happen if we had subtracted off the depreciation
that we paid. W didn't depreciate our investment
as we | ooked ahead five years.

THE W TNESS: Yes, but remenber, remenber
this. Remenmber this. You're thinking in terms of
depreciation and remaining life and all of that
t hi ng. Remember what the goal is. The goal is to
mat ch inflation expense to the period in which it is
occurred -- incurred. So each year the inflation in
M. Bradley's exanple would increase by 5 percent,
starting with $64.50 and that's the expense that
we're trying to match to those peri ods. It is the
t heoretically conceptually most pure way to do this.
And | think that tal king about doing remaining-life
cal cul ati ons confuses the issue.

JUDGE WAHL: Any further --

THE W TNESS: And, furthernmore, we have
one protection above all. It's this Comm ssion.
Nobody is going to propose to disallow any
| egiti mte costs.

JUDGE WAHL: Any further questions from
t he Comm ssion? Foll owup, M. Bahr?

MR. BAHR: Yes.
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REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. BAHR:

Q | have two questions. First of all,
Comm ssioner Wefald asked about, you know, the
amount at the beginning of C and the end, what it
woul d be near D. And that amount is significantly
hi gher, if we calculated all this out, than the 6.45
at the beginning; correct?

A Ri ght .

Q But in actual dollars when you take into
inflation, is that amount equal ?

A That's what we discussed yesterday and at
5 percent inflation rate, you're paying the sanme

amount, you know, in the | ast year as you are in the

first year. So this is really a better, nore
appropriate use of straight |line, denonstration of
straight line.

MR. BAHR: And, again, |'m suggesting that

it may be beneficial to give M. Majoros a few
m nutes to let himrun the 10 years under this
example so we actually have the figures so we can
see where the interconnection is that, | believe,
Comm ssi oner Cramer questioned.

MR. BRADLEY: | have no objection to that.

MR. BAHR: If that would be beneficial to
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t he Comm ssi on.

THE W TNESS: | can't do it in a few
m nut es.

JUDGE WAHL: How | ong are we tal king
about? Shall we recess for early lunch?

THE W TNESS: Let me work on it over
[ unch.

JUDGE WAHL: Yeah, but you only get an
hour for lunch.

THE W TNESS: | m ght be able to do it
t hen.

JUDGE WAHL: All right. Let's recess to
continue at 12:30.

(Lunch recess was taken.)

JUDGE WAHL: All right. We're on the
record.

M. Bahr, when you're ready.

Q (MR. BAHR CONTINUING) M. Majoros, prior

JUDGE WAHL: M ke on?
MR. BAHR: Yes, it is. Should be.
JUDGE WAHL: All right. You got it.
Q (MR. BAHR CONTI NUI NG) Prior to the break,
| requested that you do a chart or document to

illustrate your testinony regarding the hypothetical
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that M. Bradley presented. Did you do that over
lunch?

A Yes, | did.

MR. BAHR: And | presented a copy of this
to counsel and request that it be marked as an
exhi bit and introduced.

JUDGE WAHL: ' m sorry. The exhibit is
35. M. Bahr.

MR. BAHR: | want to make sure there's no
objection from counsel.

MR. BRADLEY: There's no objection.

JUDGE WAHL: M. Bradley?

MR. BRADLEY: Your Honor, there's no
obj ecti on.

JUDGE WAHL: Exhi bit 35 is received.

Q (MR. BAHR CONTI NUI NG) M. Maj oros, would
you please wal k us through this exhibit and expl ain
how it compares the two methods that have been
di scussed?

A Yes. The assunption, the basic assunption
was $100 future value over 10 years. So if you | ook
in the second to the |last colum, that's NSP annual
expense, $10 a year, which is equivalent to line
A-B. And then the accrual basis expense is right

next to that and it's called accrual basis annual
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expense and that's equivalent to line C-D. So,
first, you'll note that both colums add up to $100,
which is inmportant.

And with that, the change, the difference
bet ween the NSP annual expense and the accrual basis
expense, the way it works is, you take the initial
present value and you divide that by 10 and that is
recovered over a 10-year period and that would be at
$6. 14 a year. That's the initial present val ue.
Then that increases each year by the inflation
incurred each year at 5 percent. So the total
accrual is the straight-line accrual of the present
value plus the inflation that occurs during the
year. It's matchi ng.

Q And in this case you used a 5 percent that
was assunmed by M. Bradley?

A Yes.

Q |f that was a | ower percent, the accrual
basis would cone closer to matching the NSP amount ?

In other words --

A Well, there will always -- | think there
wi |l always be this pattern. How much cl oser or far
apart it will be, | don't know.

Q | guess ny question, if you assune | ess of

an inflation, the initial dollar amount that you
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have on yours is $9.21 and the end dollar anount of
10.9 would be closer?

A Yes.

Q And if you increase it to 10 percent,

t hose are going to be farther away, or aml
i ncorrect?

A "' m not sure. "' m not sure about that.
They may be farther apart, but | don't think that's
rel evant.

MR. BAHR: Okay. No further questions.
JUDGE WAHL: M. Bradley?
MR. BRADLEY: Just very briefly.
RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. BRADLEY:

Q M. Majoros, basically, if we were to make
any adjustment at all to your graph, we m ght make
your C-D line alittle flatter?

A VWhy woul d you do that?

Q Because we start with a conparison rate of
$9. 21 conpared to the $10 and we end up with a final
rate of $10.90 versus $10. There's a $.90 --
there's | ess than 10 percent difference at the front
and the back?

A Yeah, but these are your paraneters.

That's irrel evant, too.
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Q Your attorney asked you what happens if
you used a 3 percent interest rather than 5 percent,
for example. The line would get even flatter yet?

A No, | don't think it would get flatter.
" mthinking the reverse woul d happen. It would be
more extreme.

Q If we used a 3 percent instead of 5
percent, woul dn't your original dollar, instead of
being $61.39, it would be higher?

A | don't know. | used your exanple here.

Q And |I'm not quibbling with the exanple. |
was just trying to explore the alternative raised by
your counsel

MR. BRADLEY: | have no further questions.

JUDGE WAHL: Questions fromthe
Conmmi ssion?

JUDGE WAHL: Fol | owup, M. Bahr?

COVMM SSI ONER WEFALD: | have one.

JUDGE WAHL: ' m sorry. Comm ssi oner
Wef al d.

FURTHER EXAM NATI ON

BY COMM SSI ONER WEFALD:

Q So basically what | do here is, | |ook at
t he depreciation expense, $6.14, add the inflation

expense, $3.07, and that adds up to $9.217
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A. That's correct.

COMM SSI ONER WEFALD: Okay. Thank you.

JUDGE WAHL: Any further questions from
the Comm ssion? M. Bahr?

MR. BAHR: | have none.

JUDGE WAHL: M . Bradley?

MR. BRADLEY: None.

JUDGE WAHL: Okay. Thank you very much.

COMM SSI ONER WEFALD: So we should --
excuse me. Can | just ask one nmore question?

JUDGE WAHL: Yes.

Q (COVMM SSI ONER WEFALD CONTI NUI NG) So we
shoul d basically disregard the exanmples that were
made this norning about 78, 35 divided by five.

A Yes. That was m sl eading to me and |
woul d prefer -- you know, dealing with this issue,
my chart, plus that table, denmonstrates the issue.

Q And this is at 5 percent?

A That's at 5 percent.

Q Okay. We were trying to pick figures this
morning at 5 percent, but, to your understanding,
these are the correct figures to use with the 5
percent, the $100 and the 10-year accrual systen®?

A Yes. In fact, | was unable to replicate

the initial present value that M. Bradl ey had.
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These nunbers work out and it's a good denmonstration
of what the issue is. You have it before you.

COVMM SSI ONER WEFALD: Thank you. "1l use
this as my final exhibit then.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

JUDGE WAHL: M. Bahr?

MR. BAHR: |'"d just like to briefly recall
M . King.

JUDGE WAHL: All right. M. King, you
under stand, of course, that your testinmony continues
under oath, subject to the penalties of perjury?

THE W TNESS: Yes, | do.

JUDGE WAHL: M. Bahr.

CHARLES W. KI NG,
havi ng been previously sworn, was exam ned and
testified as follows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. BAHR:

Q During your testinmony today you had
expressed that having reviewed the 2000 | RP would
have been of assistance in determning the plant
life and issues relating to that; correct?

A That's correct.

Q Have you had the chance since then to

review the 2000 | RP?
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A. Yes, | have.
Q Can you explain what you found?
A. VWhat | found is, there was no nmention in

the 2000 | RP whatever of the King plant. There was
a discussion of |looking into the feasibility of
converting the High Bridge and the Riverside plants
to combi ned cycle conbustion turbines, so it would
appear that they were on the radar screen prior to
MERP, but it does not appear that the King plant
rehabilitation was at all being considered at the
time.

MR. BAHR: Thank you. No further
guesti ons.

JUDGE WAHL: M. Bradley?

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. BRADLEY:

Q Are you famliar enough with M nnesota's
process and | RP process to know whet her an existing
pl ant that is not going to be replaced but nerely
refurbi shed would be in an | RP?

A. It would be because there's discussion of
refurbishing a number of other plants. | can
identify them for you, if you would I|ike.

MR. BRADLEY: | have no further questions.

JUDGE WAHL: Any questions by the
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Comm ssion? M. Bahr?

MR. BAHR: Not hi ng further.

JUDGE WAHL: All right. Thank you very
much, M. King.

Anyt hing further, M. Bahr?

MR. BAHR: No, Your Honor, advocacy staff
have no further wi tnesses or evidence.

JUDGE WAHL: Rebuttal, Ms. Hertzler?

MS. HERTZLER: Your Honor, we have no
rebuttal at this time. There was an open question,
we believe, about whether the Comm ssioners were
going to require additional testinony of staff. I
don't know if that is still a consideration. As we
expressed before, if that's the case, we would want
t he opportunity to be able to reply.

COMM SSI ONER WEFALD: No, | don't have any
further need for that since there was testimny this
morning in that regard.

JUDGE WAHL: All right. Then, counsel,

for the record, | have one nore item which |I'm going
to handle a little -- subject to your objection and
advice, I'mgoing to handle a little differently,

and that was the Comm ssion's request to take
official notice of certain of its findings of fact,

concl usi ons of | aw and orders and certain of its
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filings regarding the evidence of estimted costs of
constructing electric transm ssion line in North
Dakot a.

That was distributed to counsel yesterday
so that everyone could take a | ook at them
specifically so that they could be identified as a
speci fic document and the specific purpose for which
t hey would be the basis of official notice by the
Comm ssion of the estimted cost of constructing
electric transm ssion Iine in North Dakot a.

' m going to mark these as an exhibit so
that they are identified as the source of the
official notice that the Comm ssion may take, if it
chooses, of that evidence.

Coment, Ms. Hertzler or M. Bradley,
whi chever ?

MR. BRADLEY: Your Honor, we are not going
to object to the Comm ssion taking notice of those.
We will in our briefs, as necessary, or discussions
with the Comm ssion, explain why those are not
rel evant costs to be used for deciding how you would
get load from North Dakota to where our load is in
the Twin Cities area, but we're not going to oppose
t hat di scussi on.

JUDGE WAHL: Fair enough. M. Bahr, |
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assume advocacy staff has no objection.

MR. BAHR: No obj ecti on.

JUDGE WAHL: So Exhibit -- 1I'"m marking
t hese documents -- they were given to me. They're
the same as what was distributed, so | am marKking
t hese documents as exhibit -- for the record as
Exhi bit 36, together.

Al'l right. M. Bahr, anything further for
the record?

MR. BAHR: We'Il| discuss the briefing
schedul e off the record?

JUDGE WAHL: Yes, off the record.

Ms. Hertzler, anything further for the
record?

MS. HERTZLER: Your Honor, the only thing
| have further would be to discuss the briefing
schedul e, which counsel and |I have agreed to.

JUDGE WAHL: Ri ght . We'll do that
informally.

Cl osing comments by the Conm ssioners?
Conm ssi oner Wefal d.

COMM SSI ONER WEFALD: It's been a very
interesting hearing. W' ve gotten a | ot of
information on the record, in addition to the fine

record that was established by both parties before
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the hearing. And it's always a pleasure to see
tal ented people at work and we certainly had
tal ented people at work throughout this hearing.
And | appreciate all of the efforts that have gone
into providing a good record for the Comm ssion.
Thank you

JUDGE WAHL: Comm ssioner Cl ark.

COMM SSI ONER CLARK: | would agree with ny
coll eague's comments. Appreciate the good testinony
and record that was devel oped. About the only thing
t he Comm ssion and regul ators can ask for is that
you have a full and conplete record and by the end
of the hearing you feel |ike you have an
under st andi ng of everything that's been put before
you and that's sometimes no small task given the
amount of information that we have to sift through
in a fairly short amount of time. Thanks to
everyone and | | ook forward to our discussions
followi ng the hearing. Thanks.

JUDGE WAHL: Comm ssi oner Cramer.

COWMM SSI ONER CRAMER: Thank you. Let me,
t oo, say thank you and express how nmuch | appreciate
t he good work of people on all sides of this issue.
| also want to say thank you for your patience,

perhaps more with me than others, as | tried to
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explore issues. |'"'m on the fringes of this specific
issue. This is my -- as a Comm ssioner, although
| ve before one now for five years nearly -- ny

first rate case that has been carried all the way
t hrough. | expect will be carried all the way
t hrough. So | appreciate the opportunity to |learn a
little bit and learn from some very smart and
tal ented people as Comm ssioner Wefald said.

| al so appreciate very nmuch the rem nder
that M. King forwarded several tinmes today, that
the burden is not on the people to prove that the
company is not entitled to this increase, but rather
on the conmpany.

And so with that in mnd, | |ook forward
to a conmplete and thorough continued review of al
of the evidence and testimony and conti nued reading
of briefs and discussion. Thank you all. Travel
safely the remai nder of this week, and a bel ated
happy birthday.

MS. HERTZLER: Thank you, Comm ssioner.

COWMM SSI ONER CRAMER: | hope you had a
nice time |ast night.

MS. HERTZLER: | did.

COVMM SSI ONER CRAMER: W th your friends.

MS. HERTZLER: Wth what has become
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JUDGE WAHL:

(Concl uded at

The hearing is closed.

12: 46 p.m,

June 25,

2008.)
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CERTI FI CATE OF COURT REPORTER

|, Denise Andahl, a Regi stered
Prof essi onal Reporter,
DO HEREBY CERTI FY that | recorded in
short hand the foregoing proceedi ngs had and made of
record at the time and place hereinbefore indicated.
| DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTI FY t hat the
foregoing typewritten pages, 1-332, contain an
accurate transcript of my shorthand notes then and
t here taken.
Dat ed at Bismarck, North Dakota, this 11th

day of July, 2008.

Deni se Andahl
Regi stered Professional Reporter




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

764

CERTI FI CATE OF COURT REPORTER

|, Linda L. G ngery, a Registered
Prof essi onal Reporter,
DO HEREBY CERTI FY that | recorded in
short hand the foregoing proceedi ngs had and made of
record at the time and place hereinbefore indicated.
| DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTI FY t hat the
foregoing typewritten pages, 333-762, contain an
accurate transcript of my shorthand notes then and
t here taken.
Dat ed at Bismarck, North Dakota, this 11th

day of July, 2008.

Linda L. G ngery
Regi stered Professional Reporter
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